Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the COUNCIL will be held in Council Chamber
- Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on
THURSDAY 23 NOVEMBER 2017 AT 7.30 PM

Manjeet Gill
Interim Chief Executive
Published on 15 November 2017

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities
Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services

The Underpinning Principles
Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel
efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

To: The Members of Wokingham Borough Council

ITEM
NO.

WARD

SUBJECT

46.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence

47.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 21
September 2017.

48.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

49.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of
the public about the work of the Council
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of
the Council or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go
to www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

49.1

Hillside

David Hare has asked the Executive Member for
Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
Please can you let me know when the pathway from
Kerris Way, towards Radstock School, will be
reopened?

49.2

Emmbrook;
Wescott

Peter Humphreys has asked the Executive Member
for Business and Economic Development and
Regeneration the following question:
Question:
When the new shopping centres opened recently in
Bracknell and Oxford approximately 25% of the units
were vacant.
To date only one retail unit has been pre-let in both

PAGE
NO.

17 - 46

Peach Place and Elms Field.
What can be perceived as lack of confidence in the
Elms Field development has been demonstrated by
Wetherspoons, a business one would assume to be
in a position to benefit due to its location at the
gateway to that scheme approaching from the town
centre, announcing it is closing next year.
To make matters worse the Council’s grand idea was
to have flagship business’ at either end of the town
centre to encourage footfall at the smaller units when
shoppers’ walk from one to the other. The closure of
M&S wrecked that plan.
Taking all these factors into consideration when will
the council be announcing that the Elms Field
scheme is being abandoned and that £80 million is
not going to be gambled on a white elephant?
49.3

Wescott

Graeme Robertson has asked the Executive Member
for Highways and Transport the following question:
Question
I have been issued with a blue badge from
Wokingham Borough Council because I cannot walk
20m.
I am a member of the 1 life and am a regular user of
the gym/pool at the Carnival Pool, attend a weekly
yoga session at St Crispin's Leisure Centre and the
gym at Loddon Valley - all run by WDC for people
with long term conditions.
I have Primary Progressive MS diagnosed in 1998 as part of my condition I have to maintain my fitness
which is vital for therapy/rehabilitation and retain my
independence
I have a blue badge and use a rollator (granny
walker) to get in and out of the gym - I can manage to
use equipment in the gym but cannot walk very far.
Recently there have been 4 disabled spaces near the
main entrance, which apart from able-bodied people
abusing the spaces!, has been ideal for me to stagger
in and out of the gym.
The Council have re-located the disabled parking
spaces into the new car park which is too far for me
to walk and the disabled spaces are too far away at
St Crispin's and Loddon Valley.

The Council claim that they meet the British
Standards for disability, by putting benches en-route.
They think it is OK for disabled people to sit outside in
the winter time, in the rain etc - I am pretty sure the
BS recommends that benches are used, they need to
be covered and well lit.
Why have the Council removed disabled spaces
outside the Carnival Pool and moved them into the
new car park meaning people who have long term
conditions who cannot walk, but want to be
independent, cannot use the facility?
49.4

Emmbrook;
Wescott

Caroline Smith has asked the Executive Member for
Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
Wokingham Borough Council is promising us a dream
of a town but getting there is a nightmare. Footfall is
dramatically down and with Christmas coming, the
retail scene is dismal.
The town centre is surrounded by fences, bridges and
holes accompanied by high noise levels from the
works. Not only have we got two major construction
and highway projects happening at the same time, we
now civil enforcement of parking and the opening of
the Lexicon driving people to shop elsewhere, we
also seem to have major infrastructure works on just
about every route into town.
The Council has acknowledged there is a problem.
However, the free parking after 3pm has made no
difference to the town so please could they go further
and increase it to all day or make the first two hours
of parking in any session free?

49.5

Evendons

Helen Power has asked the Executive Member for
Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
Local residents are becoming increasingly concerned
about pedestrians trying to cross Molly Millars Lane to
get to and from Lidl. This is very dangerous and they
have seen pedestrians stranded in the middle of the
road unable to complete their crossing due to fast and
busy traffic.
Will you look into providing a safe place for
pedestrians to cross on Molly Millars Lane by the Lidl
store?

49.6

Maiden Erlegh

Guy Grandison has asked the Executive Member for
Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
Following the unfortunate accident at
the Three Tuns traffic lights and in light of the
coroner’s report, can we ask that the Borough
highways officers carry out a review of safety features
in cooperation with their counterparts in Reading
Borough Council and the Police to ensure that all
practical measures are in place?

49.7

Emmbrook

Rachel Bishop-Firth has asked the Executive Member
for Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
I know that a lot of Wokingham residents have
concerns about the ‘eyesore’ temporary bridge over
the railway line at the Tan Hill crossing.
Pedestrians now have to use two bridges to get over
the railway at this crossing, and the very steep
temporary bridge is impossible to use if you have a
bike, pram or wheelchair.
Network Rail’s Community Relations Team has
written to me stating that the temporary bridge was
put in place with the agreement of Wokingham
Council. They have also assured me that ‘once the
local authority install the planned over span bridge
which is a permanent solution to this problem, then
Network Rail will remove this temporary structure’.
Could the Council please confirm the planned date for
building the permanent over span bridge at the Tan
Hill Crossing, and can they confirm that the new
bridge will be useable by residents with a pram or
wheelchair?

49.8

Shinfield South

Simon Cooper has asked the Executive Member for
Highways and Transport the following question:
Question:
On the matter of speeding in Grazeley, a recent
independent speed survey conducted by the local
residents found that the average speed was 48mph
and a top speed of 81mph was recorded, following
serious accidents in the village as a direct cause of
excess speed and the constant fear when trying to
exit residents' drives or walk along the paths in the
village, please can Chris Bowring advise why it is that

Thames Valley Police, Shinfield Parish Council and
the local residents of Grazeley all accept there is a
serious issue in the village with speeding however
WBC persist in their denial there is an issue and
refuse to attend the site to witness the daily onslaught
that residents live with?
50.

PETITIONS
To receive any petitions which Members or members
of the public wish to present.

51.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements by the Mayor

52.

None Specific

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO INVESTMENT
STRATEGY
To consider the Property Portfolio Investment
Strategy; which was considered by the Executive on
28 September 2017.

47 - 50

RECOMMENDATION Council is recommended to:

53.

None Specific

1)

note the recommendations agreed by
Executive on 28 September 2017, as set out in
the report;

2)

agree that up to £100m borrowing powers, in
line with the Property Portfolio Investment
Strategy, are delegated to the Director
Corporate Services, in consultation with the
Leader, Executive Member for Finance and
the Executive Member for Business, Economic
Development and Regeneration;

3)

agree that in line with the Property Portfolio
Investment Strategy the Director Corporate
Services, in consultation with the Leader,
Executive Member for Finance and the
Executive Member for Business, Economic
Development and Regeneration, be delegated
authority to invest up to a maximum of £20m
for a single transaction.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT
REMUNERATION PANEL ON MEMBERS'
ALLOWANCES LEVELS
To receive the report and recommendations of the
Independent Remuneration Panel following their
annual review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme.
RECOMMENDATION The Independent
Remuneration Panel recommends to Council that:

51 - 60

54.

None Specific

(1)

The time contributed component of the Basic
Allowance be increased by 1% to reflect the
increase in Officer pay, backdated to 1 April
2017;

(2)

There be no change made to the multiples of
the Special Responsibility Allowances paid to
those roles as set out in the current Members’
Allowances Scheme;

(3)

With effect from 1 April 2018, Special
Responsibility Allowances should be limited to
one per Member (not including Non-Executive
Director payments) that being the one with the
highest value;

(4)

In line with the motion passed by Council on
26 September 2016, Members be reminded to
provide information for publication on the
website regarding payments received from any
outside bodies to which they were appointed
by Wokingham Borough Council;

(5)

The publication of Members' payments on the
website be reviewed with a view to make the
information more prominent and immediately
visible;

(6)

The £500 component of the Basic Allowance
for out of pocket expenses should be
increased to £600, to contribute to the cost of
parking at Shute End;

(7)

The £500 component of the Basic Allowance
for the provision of IT should continue to be
claimed only by those Members who provide
facilities which allow constituents and Officers
to communicate with them by e-mail and the
self-certification process be continued;

(8)

The rate payable for the Childcare and
Dependants Carers' Allowance be increased to
£10ph for up to 35 hours per month.

APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY OFFICER DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE SERVICES
Council is required to appoint the statutory officers,
including the Director of Children’s Services and the
Director of Adult Social Services.
Following of the departure of Judith Ramsden, the
Director People Services, it was necessary to appoint

an interim Director to have responsibility for the
statutory children’s and adults social care functions.
RECOMMENDATION: That Paul Senior be
appointed as Interim Director People Services and
take on the statutory responsibilities of the Director of
Children’s Services and the Director of Adult Social
Services with immediate effect.
55.

None Specific

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION
To consider a report containing revisions to the
process for extraordinary Council meetings, the
Licensing and Appeals Committee terms of reference,
Officer Employment Procedure Rules, Delegated
Powers Relating to Staffing Matters, the Financial
Regulations and the Procurement and Contract Rules
and Procedures; as agreed by members of the
Constitution Review Working Group.
RECOMMENDATION That Council agree the
following changes to the Constitution as
recommended by the Constitution Review Working
Group:
1)

Chapter 4 The Council Meeting
that Rule 4.2.3.2 be amended as follows:
4.2.3.2 Business
“The business to be conducted at an
extraordinary meeting of the Council shall be a
single item only unless exceptionally agreed
by the Mayor.”

2)

Chapter 8 Regulatory and Other Committees
that Rule 8.4.2 be amended as follows:
8.4.2 Meetings of the Licensing and
Appeals Committee
“The Licensing and Appeals Committee shall
schedule a minimum of meet at least four
times meetings per Municipal Year, as
scheduled in the Timetable of Meetings,
agreed by Council;”

3)

revisions to Rules 11.5.3, 11.5.4 and 11.6.5.3
(Officer Employment Procedure Rules and
Chapter 11.6 Delegated Powers Relating to
Staffing Matters) as set out in paragraph 4 of
the report;

61 - 72

56.

4)

revisions to the Financial Regulations as set
out in Appendix 1 of the report;

5)

revisions to the Procurement and Contract
Rules and Procedures as highlighted in
Appendix 2 to the report.

STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE
COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS, AND DEPUTY
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
To receive any statements by the Leader of the
Council, Executive Members, and Deputy Executive
Members.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.23 the total
time allocated to this item shall not exceed 20
minutes, and no Member shall speak for more than 5
minutes

57.

STATEMENTS FROM COUNCIL OWNED
COMPANIES
To receive any statements from Directors of Council
Owned Companies.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.24 the total
time allocated to this item shall not exceed 10
minutes, and no Director, except with the consent of
Council, shall speak for more than 3 minutes.

58.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to
ask questions submitted under Notice
Any questions not dealt with within the allotted time
will be dealt with in a written reply

58.1

Barkham;
Shinfield South;
Twyford

Gary Cowan has asked the Executive Member for
Strategic Highways and Planning the following
question:
Question:
In answer to my question 28.1 at the Executive
meeting held on the 27th of July 2017 you stated that
“We recognise the important contribution that Parish
and Town Councils can bring to the planning process
and will be actively engaging with them and Borough
Councillors in the site assessment work which will
inform the Local Plan Update. We will shortly be

starting to engage with them on our initial
assessments. The intention is to batch those sites up
into wards, then invite Parish and Town Council
representatives and ward Members to discuss the
initial assessments”.
Can you update me on how you consulted with the
Members, Parish/Town Councillors and residents
prior to the public announcement that Master
Planners will be funded to look at development
opportunities in Barkham, Grazeley and the Twyford
areas.
58.2

Remenham,
Wargrave and
Ruscombe

John Halsall has asked the Executive Member for
Environment the following question:
Question:
One year ago the Licensing and Appeals Committee
decided “to commission an external review of
evidence to support the adoption of a Cumulative
Impact Policy for the parish of Remenham, subject to
the agreement from the Executive Member for
Resident Services due to the financial implications”
The agreement was given.
What has happened and why have I not been kept
informed?

58.3

Wescott

Lindsay Ferris has asked the Executive Member for
Adults' Services, Health, Wellbeing and Housing the
following question:
Question
With regard to the 22 Peach Place Flats, where
WBC will be using public funds (namely Section 106
Commuted Sums) to pay for these flats, when will
these costs be in the public domain?

58.4

None Specific

Chris Smith has asked the Executive Member for
Planning and Enforcement the following question:
Question
Is the Council taking a robust approach to people who
do not follow planning guidance?

58.5

Wescott

Alison Swaddle has asked the Executive Member for
Adults' Services the following question:
Question
Could the Executive Member explain why the call-in
of affordable housing at Peach Place by the Liberal
Democrats was overturned by the Overview and

Scrutiny Management Committee?
58.6

None Specific

Angus Ross has asked the Executive Member for
Business and Economic Development and
Regeneration the following question:
Question
Please could you provide me with an update on the
rollout of superfast broadband across the Borough?

58.7

None Specific

Michael Firmager has asked the Executive Member
for Highways and Transport the following question:
Question
Could the Executive update the Council on the
implementation of Civil Parking Enforcement?

58.8

None Specific

Bill Soane has asked the Executive Member for
Environment the following question:
Question
What is the Council doing to combat flytipping across
the Borough?

58.9

None Specific

Pauline Jorgensen has asked the Executive Member
for Highways and Transport the following question:
Question
The 19a/c bus services in Woodley and Earley have
been reduced by Reading Buses on the grounds that
these services are supposedly loss-making. Could
the Executive Member confirm that Wokingham
Borough Council increased its funding for those
services, yet Reading Buses still reduced the parts of
those bus services that actually made money?

58.10

Winnersh

Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey has asked the Executive
Member for Highways and Transport the following
question:
Question
With all the extensive preplanning over several
years that occurred on the Longdon Roadworks for
the Winnersh Relief Road, Health and Safety
planning for school children and residents
missed something because one pavement will be
closed on one side of the road and then the other
side of the road will be closed for weeks for the
works. There have been several near misses of
people crossing the road, luckily no one has been
seriously injured. Why wasn't a temporary signalised
crossing been installed at the point a pavement was

closed?
58.11

None Specific

Clive Jones has asked the Executive Member for
Strategic Highways and Planning the following
question:
Question
It is looking increasingly likely that the number of
houses that this Conservative government is going to
expect this council to build in Wokingham between
2016 and 2036 will be nearly 900 a year, a total of
18,000.
This we feel is far too high and would lead to grid lock
across many parts of the Borough and also put at risk
the very character of this area. It should be opposed
as hard as it can be.
However should the council agree to build this many
houses in just 2, 3 or 4 locations, is it your
understanding and the Councils officers and legal
teams understanding that no other houses will need
be built in any other parts of the Borough?

58.12

None Specific

Ian Pittock has asked the Leader of the Council the
following question:
Question
Members will recall the unanimous agreement my
motion of November 2016 received - that all
allowances Members receive from any internal or
external posts to which they are appointed by this
Council are to be declared to Democratic Services
and published in one location on the WBC website.
Could the Leader of the Council please state her level
of confidence that Conservative Members have
declared all allowances for FY2016-17 so allowing
Democratic Services to publish these?

58.13

None Specific

Andy Croy has asked the Executive Member for
Finance the following question:
Question:
In yesterday's budget, was there any recognition or
remediation given to the fact that in 2019/20
Wokingham Borough Council will have a negative
Revenue Support Grant and will, in effect, have to
pay £6.9 million pounds to central government?

59.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD
MATTERS
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to
ask questions in relation to the latest circulated
volume of Minutes of Meetings and Ward Matters

60.

MOTIONS
To consider any motions
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.11.2 a
maximum period of 30 minutes will be allowed for
each Motion to be moved, seconded and debated,
including dealing with any amendments. At the expiry
of the 30-minute period debate will cease
immediately, the mover of the Motion or amendment
will have the right of reply before the Motion or
amendment is put to the vote

60.1

None Specific

Motion 400 submitted by Prue Bray
This Council recommends that no councillor on this
authority who carries out more than one councilappointed role for which additional payments are
available, including
-

roles for which Special Responsibility
Allowances are payable;
roles as Non-Executive Directors of councilowned companies; and
roles on Outside Bodies which attract
payment;

should take more than one of those additional
payments.
60.2

None Specific

Motion 401 submitted by Andy Croy
Buses in Woodley and Earley
This Council notes:
(1) The Local Transport Plan 3, 2011 to 2026, (LTP);
(2) The public consultation for the LTP (p33)
identified "ensuring that public transport is affordable
and accessible" as the most popular response from
the public;
(3) One of the goals of the LTP is: "to promote an
integrated and inclusive public transport network that
provides a convenient, acceptable, reliable and
affordable alternative to car travel";

(4) The LTP states (p75): "Bus services are a vital
means of transport for vulnerable and economically
challenged people as they provide access to key
facilities such as employment locations and health
care. Better services will improve accessibility for
everyone;
(5) Policy PT2 (of the LTP): Increasing our residents
use of bus services. We will work with bus operators
to enhance the quality, viability and attractiveness of
bus services across the Borough so that the need to
provide subsidies is minimised;
(6) Policy PT6 (of the LTP): Availability of Services.
We will work in partnership with key organisations to
enhance bus service provision to health, education,
leisure, retail and employment opportunities;
(7) The report to the Executive on 29 June which
stated:
"The 19a/c bus services provided the following social
benefits:
 The only bus service along Drovers Way &
Coppice Road,
 The only bus service along Miles Way &
Comet Way,
 The only bus service along Culver Lane,
Woodley
 The only bus service along Vauxhall Drive,
Woodley
 The only bus service along Silverdale Road,
Maiden Erlegh
 The only bus service along Church Road,
Earley
 Access between Woodley and Maiden Erlegh
 Access to Hurricane Way GP’s Surgery,
 Access to the Royal Berkshire Hospital,";
(8) The 19a/c served some the most deprived areas
of the Borough;
(9) The 19a/c had a high proportion of
concessionary bus users. This demonstrates the
social need being met by the services;
(10) The 19a/c provided quick and affordable
access to the Royal Berkshire Hospital, a service that
was especially valuable for older residents;
(11) The 19a/c service was essential for residents to
access work, healthcare and retail facilities; its 'village

on wheels' community spirit helped to reduce social
isolation and increased the well-being of its users;
(12) A meaningful consultation on the future of the
19a/c service was not carried out before the service
was stopped;
(13) A cap was imposed on the funds available to
renew the 19a/c service;
(14) A tender process for replacement services is
underway will not be complete until late 2018.
This Council:
(1) Regrets we have to date been unable to find
adequate funding to extend the 19a/c service beyond
September 2017;
(2) Acknowledges the replacement services are not
fit for purpose;
(3) Apologises to residents for the distress, upset
and inconvenience caused by the ending the 19a/c
service;
(4) Instructs the Lead Member for Highways and
Transport to discuss with Reading Buses any
opportunity to re-extend the 19a/c service until the
tender process is completed and an acceptable new
service is in place;
(5) Instructs the Lead Member for Finance to agree
with the Lead Member for Highways, adequate
additional funding until the tender process is
completed and an acceptable new service is in place.

CONTACT OFFICER
Anne Hunter
Tel
Email
Postal Address

Democratic & Electoral Services Lead Specialist
0118 974 6051
anne.hunter@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 47.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL
HELD ON 21 SEPTEMBER 2017 FROM 7.30 PM TO 10.30 PM
Members Present
Councillors: Rob Stanton (Mayor), John Kaiser (Deputy Mayor), Parry Batth,
Laura Blumenthal, Chris Bowring, Prue Bray, UllaKarin Clark, Gary Cowan, Andy Croy,
Richard Dolinski, Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager, Mike Haines, Pauline Helliar-Symons,
Emma Hobbs, Tim Holton, John Jarvis, Philip Houldsworth, Clive Jones,
Norman Jorgensen, Dianne King, Pauline Jorgensen, David Lee, Abdul Loyes,
Charles Margetts, Ken Miall, Stuart Munro, Anthony Pollock, Angus Ross, Beth Rowland,
Imogen Shepherd-DuBey, Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, David Sleight, Chris Smith,
Simon Weeks, Oliver Whittle and Shahid Younis
33.
WELCOME TO INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The Mayor welcomed Manjeet Gill, the Interim Chief Executive, to her first Council
meeting.
The Interim Chief Executive commented that she was looking forward to working with
Members.
34.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Alistair Auty, Mark Ashwell, Keith Baker, Kate
Haines, Charlotte Haitham Taylor, John Halsall, Julian McGhee Sumner, Philip Mirfin,
Barrie Patman, Ian Pittock, Malcolm Richards, Wayne Smith, Bill Soane, Alison Swaddle
and Paul Swaddle.
35.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 20 July 2017 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Mayor.
36.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made.
37.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.
It was moved by the Mayor and seconded by the Deputy Mayor that, in accordance with
Procedure Rule 4.2.12n), Procedure Rule 4.2.9.1 be suspended to allow Public Question
Time to be extended to 45 minutes.
Upon being put to the vote the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried.
37.1 Steve Bowers asked the Executive Member for Adults' Services the following
question which in his absence was answered by the Deputy Executive
Member for Adults' Services:
The Council is currently in breach of its Statutory Duties with actions taken under the 21st
Century project, how do you propose to remedy this urgent situation?
The Statutory duties are clearly laid out in the HCA – The Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard
(https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/628396/

17

Tenant_Involvement_and_Empowerment_Standard.pdf) particularly clause 2.2.3.
‘2.2.3 Where registered providers are proposing a change in landlord for one or more of
their tenants or a significant change in their management arrangements, they shall consult
with affected tenants in a fair, timely, appropriate and effective manner. Registered
providers shall set out the proposals clearly and in an appropriate amount of detail and
shall set out any actual or potential advantages and disadvantages (including costs) to
tenants in the immediate and longer term. Registered providers must be able to
demonstrate to affected tenants how they have taken the outcome of the consultation into
account when reaching a decision.’
Phase 1 of the 21st Century has already seen the unilateral decision taken to split the
Housing Service into strategic and operational services without any form of consultation.
This split between Strategic and Operational decision making has the potential to lead to
some disastrous plans being put in place without the expertise of operational personnel.
This sort of situation cannot be a good use of your existing resources, wasting time and
money on inspirational projects that are impractical in the local environment and likely to
lead to an even greater loss of credibility within the Borough.
We are already seeing the negative impact of Phase 1 within the Housing Service with the
loss of experienced staff both permanent and short term. The replacements are short term
contractors or agency temps which impacts on both the existing staff and the tenants.
With Phase 2 being split into two tranches without an end date but tranche 1 only aiming
for completion in April 2018 Housing are looking at another year of dealing with the fallout
from lack of direction.
The Involved Tenant members of the Tenant & Landlord Improvement Panel (TLIP) a fully
constituted group of WBC, a group charged with scrutinising the use of the HRA budget
circa £15 million, have expressed concerns over many months to both the Leader of the
Council and the Chief Executive but no action has been taken to improve the situation in
spite of promises made by both gentlemen.
Whilst we appreciate that the Council is under increasing pressure to reduce costs if the
current trends continue you are in danger of losing what little trust that Wokingham
residents have in your ability to run our affairs.
Answer
Wokingham Borough Council is fully aware of, and committed to our duties under the
Homes and Communities Agency’s Regulatory Standards, and we also value highly our
relationship with TLIP. Improvements in Housing Services are directly linked with the
partnership with the involved tenant structures over the last few years.
The Council acknowledges that you should have been consulted on Phase1 as per the
Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard and apologise for this oversight. This
oversight is, I suspect, attributable to the fact that the HRA was substantially located in
Phase 2 of the programme. As such, no firm decisions have been made in respect of the
HRA. I confirm that you will be engaged in Phase 2.
I can confirm that there is not an embargo on a recruitment of permanent staff during the
implementation of the 21st Century programme. Managers have been asked to undertake
careful management when filling vacancies to ensure that they minimise risk of future

18

redundancy, but where a post is vital to the continued delivery of service then it should be
filled.
There are, however, certain posts that are difficult to fill, such as surveyors, but this is an
issue about the competitive market for those positions rather than anything to do with the
21st Century programme.
The Operational Housing Services Team are almost fully staffed for the first time in a long
time, albeit with a range of permanent and temporary staff and attempts continue to be
made to fill these posts with permanent staff where appropriate.
With regards to the Housing Needs, Tenant Involvement and Housing Management
Teams, all are virtually fully staffed, again with a mixture of temporary and permanent staff,
based on judgement of the managers of the service.
Simon tells me that the staff levels and capacity of the team have improved over the last
month and we are continually monitoring this issue not just in Housing, but across the
Council. I hope this gives you some reassurance that there is a strong commitment in to
continuing to provide the high level of service to tenants.
Finally I can confirm as of 22nd August the staff split within the Housing Service is as
follows, 30 permanent, 10 fixed term contracts, 7 agency and 8 secondees of which 5
internal and 3 external to Housing Services. The rent team, which sits in another
department, has 2 permanent and 2 agency staff.
Supplementary Question:
The Leader of the Council acknowledged the breach of duty in her letter to me of 24
August. This needs to be rectified within the week to avoid involving the Housing
Ombudsman. Will that happen?
Supplementary Answer:
Yes, that will happen.
37.2 Jen Challis asked the Executive Member for Finance the following question:
When the 21st Century Council Project was first announced one of the key elements was
to improve local coverage and reduce the costs associated with multiple personnel having
to carry out visits to localities thus helping to improve community involvement and
development. Is this still one of your priorities, as the opposite appears to be happening?
The Neighbourhood Officers, Rent Officers and the Community Development Officers are
front line staff dealing with your customers on a daily basis and as such their roles are
critical to local communities. However over the last six months we have seen these key
staff leaving, being seconded to projects, having to attend multiple training sessions thus
leaving gaps in availability. The recruitment of short term replacements with little local
experience also adds to the pressure on existing staff whilst they are being trained. Long
term some of these replacements may become valuable members but with the short term
nature of their employment there is no commitment to either the area or the communities.
Tenants are finding it increasingly difficult to know who to contact, in one case the
Neighbourhood Officer who was introduced one week had left when they tried to contact a
week later. This does not inspire confidence in Residents. The Rent department has seen
a massive turnover of staff which is extremely frustrating for Tenants trying to make
contact and get a problem resolved. Our overall impression is of total chaos with letters

19

being generated that no one understands even the staff whose signatures are on them.
Rent arrears are a problem for the Council but the lack of credibility in your systems only
frightens the innocent while the intentional non-payers just ignore them. This needs to be
addressed sooner rather than later.
Answer
Thank you for your question. I can confirm that it is still a priority of the 21st Century
Council Programme to deliver locality working. The Programme has been split into two
phases with the initial stage (which has now completed) focusing on our back office
systems and services. We have been making changes to how we serve each other within
the Council first of all so that we could learn from this before we look at those services
which directly serve our residents. This two-stage approach will explain why you feel you
have not yet seen any direct improvements. The Programme will be seeking to make
service delivery more customer focused and much easier for our residents to access our
services.
With regards to staffing, there have been a number of moves in and out of the service, as
you mention, and over the last few months some surgeries have unfortunately been
cancelled, as there is currently only one Housing Officer in post. It is hoped surgeries will
return to normal once we have recruited into the vacant post.
For the first time in a while the Asset Management Team is now almost fully staffed albeit
with a range of permanent and temporary staff. Attempts continue to strike the appropriate
balance and ensure that critical roles such as the Procurement and Contracts Manager
role are occupied by permanent staff.
It is recognised that there has been turnover in Housing, and that there has been some
recruitment and retention issues. We are therefore having to employ agency staff to
supplement our permanently employed staff but I can assure you however that the team is
currently very close to full compliment.
A rent review project is already underway, overseen by our most senior Housing Officer,
looking at all key processes with a view to adding capacity and stability, and improving the
service offer for the benefit of all concerned. The rent review project has reinforced that
additional staff are required in the rent team in order to provide the necessary focus on
high level debt, continual non-payers, former tenant arrears etc. This will pick up the
wording of all letters that you refer to. The outcome of the review will be reported to
Tenant and Landlord Improvement Panel in September and will be available on request.
Supplementary Question
As the HRA is already part of community houses and the rent team are currently under
review, why does the Council not consider incorporating the rent and community
development teams into a housing department, thus creating a fully holistic team for
communities and tenants whilst saving officers general time?
Supplementary Answer
I think it is fair to say that as part of the 21st century Council project we will be looking at
the way that all of these areas operate and looking to ensure that they work to the
optimum.

20

37.3 Brian Lee asked the Executive Member for Adults' Services the following
question which in his absence was answered by the Deputy Executive
Member for Adults' Services :
The Council’s 21st Century Project is having a major impact on the functions carried out by
the Asset Management team within Housing Services. How much longer are we as
Tenants expected to tolerate the growing staff shortages and the Council’s failure to
appreciate the problems that both the team and Tenants are having to tolerate?
The Council’s embargo on the recruitment of permanent staff and the consequent use of
agency or temporary contractors is costly in financial terms but also places pressure on
the remaining staff who are unable to attract applications for the vacancies or retain
experienced staff. Eventually the increased pressure will lead to increasing staff welfare
issues and gaps appearing in the services to residents across the Borough. Prior to the
start of the 21st Century project this team was a busy, proactive group who had improved
the Councils property assets bringing 99% up to the Decent Homes Standard but are now
in very real danger of collapse. They have let major contracts and monitored them
effectively to ensure that the Council is achieving improved value for money and that
tenant satisfaction continues to improve. We are now in the position where staff shortages
mean that not all of these functions can be fully carried out. The Council needs to change
their recruitment policy now before further damage is done and your assets depreciate.
Answer
Without being accused of repeating myself, the answer I will give will be the same as the
one I gave to Steve’s question because your question is very similar actually.
Again I can confirm that there is not an embargo on recruitment of permanent staff.
Managers have been asked to undertake a careful management when filling vacancies to
ensure that they minimise the risk of future redundancies, but where a post is vital, and I
have already said this, to continued delivery of the service it should be filled and that is
important.
There are certain posts as I have said, like surveyors that are difficult to fill, such as
surveyors, where we are at the mercy of the market on that.
The Operational Housing Team are almost fully staffed as I have said. Yes, the majority
we have got are permanent but we have got some temporary staff. That is not to say that
our temporary staff are not excellent. We have got some very good temporary staff there
and they might even migrate in to permanent staff, we do not know. It is all part of the 21st
century.
With regards to the Housing Needs, Tenant Involvement and Housing Management
Teams, as I said, are virtually fully staffed, and that is a welcome picture there, and as I
said earlier on, I can confirm that as of 22nd August there are 30 permanent staff, 10 fixed
term contracts, 7 agency and 8 secondees in there.
The capacity of the team has improved so maybe when you filed that question in your
mind it probably was not, but it has improved over the last month. We are continually
monitoring this issue not just in Housing, but across the whole Council.
37.4 Chris Wallace asked the Executive Member for Finance the following
question:
The 21st Century Project is supposed to reduce staff costs whilst improving interaction

21

between the Council and residents primarily through the use of enhanced IT. How will this
work when there has been no input from customers and the Council’s website has been
downgraded in a national survey by Better Connected from 3 Star to 2 Star while other
local Councils are improving?
The Council are investing large sums of our money into IT systems and staff training but
no one has bothered to ask us what we want to see improved. There are many residents
in the Borough who are disabled or disadvantaged who cannot access your IT services
and the helpline is less than helpful, nine times out of ten they don’t know the answer nor
do they know who might. Reporting problems on the website appears to be a complete
waste of time with no acknowledgments at the time or later by email. Web pages over 5
years out of date, updated pages having incorrect information, the list is endless. The
communications about 21st Century, even the minutes from the Scrutiny Committee, are
all papering over the problems being experienced by your customers. Everything is
supposedly on track, everyone is on board with the changes and the Council will save
huge sums of money. No it’s not. If two out of three, on track and on board, are false can
you be sure that the predicted costs and savings are true. Involved Tenants have
questioned changes to the Housing Service and yet again there is a total lack of
communication or consultation on this area of your business. Rumours of the Housing
Service splitting into multiple areas within the Council are hopefully just that because the
destruction of the most organised, experienced and dedicated team will come back to
haunt you. By all means change what needs to be changed, to improve services, but don’t
ruin the parts that work in your drive for change.
Answer
Thank you for your question, which covers a number of issues which I will group for ease:
The existing web page and service provided through our Customer Service Teams is the
first topic. The Council regularly works with our residents to find out what they want from
our website and to build the site based on this feedback as we believe, it is more important
for us to find out what residents want, as opposed to a rating exercise based on
categories.
In fact the Council scored better in this year’s Better Connected survey than last years,
showing a good direction of travel. However, we agree with the SOCITM’s assessment of
our online mapping services, and have already begun improving this area as part of the
21st Century Council Programme and this will be online shortly.
The Council’s Customer Service team is able to resolve and manage a high proportion of
calls that are received, however we recognise that this can be improved for residents by
increasing the scope of the customer service remit and we are actively addressing this via
the 21st Century Programme, which brings me on to the 21st Century programme.
This programme has been spilt into two phases with the initial and now completed stage
focusing on our back office systems and services. We have been making changes to how
we serve each other within the Council first so that we could learn from this before we look
at those parts of the Council that directly serve our residents. This will explain why you
feel you have not yet seen any direct improvements. The programme is seeking to make
service delivery more customer focused and much easier for our residents to access. In
particular, we will be looking at and prioritising the high volume processes that are
regularly undertaken by our residents. However, whilst we will be looking to make these
available online to meet customer demand, I can assure you there are no plans to remove

22

the option for residents to opt for “assisted delivery” via Customer Services when
transacting with the Council, should they need to.
Finally, the Housing Service: - This Programme, as I have said before, has not yet
considered how the services provided by our Housing teams can be enhanced through the
programme. As in any change however I am aware that there has been speculation as to
what might happen to the configuration of the service but I can assure you that the
programme does not set out to reduce or diminish existing services, rather it is seeking
efficiencies in the way the Council is organised to enable a much more joined up customer
responsive service for all of our residents. As an important stakeholder group our involved
tenants will be part of the design process.
Supplementary Question:
With the HRA being a standalone ring-fenced budget, ergo non-transferable to the General
Fund, we the involved tenants on behalf of the 3,000 plus council tenants across the
Borough, ask the Council to consider the views expressed by the four involved tenant
chairs and instruct senior Council officers to listen to our opinion. Please do not become
another Kensington and Chelsea Council, listen to your tenants.
Supplementary Answer:
I think it is fair to say that we do listen to the tenants. We pay attention to what they have
to say, we have regular meetings with them and will continue to do so.
37.5 Keith Malvern asked the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and
Planning the following question:
Why have you had to find an extra £400,000 this financial year to cover Local Plan
activities when the schedule of work was already known?
Answer
You are quite right we have had to find this additional money because we have had a
substantial number of sites which have been submitted by residents of this Borough. The
number greatly exceeded that for which we had expectations when setting the original
budget for the Local Plan.
The supplementary funding is required to assess the opportunities for sustainable
development across all of the promoted sites. In particular, it will allow master planning of
larger and more complex sites to ensure we are fully aware of the opportunities and
constraints to sustainable development, including in depth consideration of infrastructure
delivery plans, which is a key message coming from residents.
Future consultation on the Local Plan Update will be supported by the detailed
assessment of all sites, some of which will be recommended for allocation for specific uses
as part of a balanced strategy for delivery.
Supplementary Question:
Reference has been made to the Local Enterprise Partnership as those who have
commented about some of the specific sites. I know little about the LEP other than the
fact that they gave £1.5million of a government interest free loan to fund this Wokingham
car park. Can you tell me why this publicly funded body has not already published reports
about these three sites? Publicly funded equals public has a right to know.

23

Supplementary Answer:
You refer to the LEP. That was a document on which the former Leader of the Council sat
on the LEP Board as a representative of all Berkshire councils and under that LEP while
Keith was Leader here and representative, they carried out a full survey on Grazeley and
on Twyford as potential development sites, and a detailed traffic assessment.
That was the position. There is nothing secret about it. It is a public document and if you
do not have it Keith, I am more than happy to get you a copy but please make sure your
facts are right. That was carried out by the Local Enterprise Partnership. It was not this
Authority.
37.6 Helen Power asked the Executive Member for Children's Services the
following question which in his absence was answered by the Deputy
Executive Member for Children's Services:
Will the Executive Member please advise why the number of pupils per year (Published
Admission Number) for Bohunt School has changed from the agreed 180 (September
2016) to 240 a year, which means the present buildings are only big enough to
accommodate 11-16 year olds, not 11-18 year olds, as was intended, with the increase in
pupils meaning consequent impacts for other local schools and a presumed requirement to
build the additional wing to accommodate the sixth form pupils which the current buildings
were supposed to cater for?
Answer
The Council’s intention was to establish a 1,200 place 11 to 18 school, which implies an
admission number in the order of 180 places. The increased admission number, which
means the capacity will be required for the planned 11 to 16 roll, has been set by the
school itself. Bohunt Wokingham School is an Academy and as such an “own admission
authority” school responsible for setting its own Admission Number. National policy
supports schools increasing the number of places they offer in response to parental
preference, so this Council had no grounds to object to this decision.
I can also confirm that there is no presumption that Wokingham Borough Council will
invest to enable the current students to progress into a sixth form on site. My
understanding is the school has a funding agreement with the Department for Education
as an 11 to 16 school. The expansion issue will be addressed at a later date taking
account of the Council’s resources and priorities at that point, as well as the school’s
ambitions and other potential funding sources.
Supplementary Question:
Bohunt School cost well over £30million to provide education to 11 to 18 year olds but now
they have increased the number of pupils per year, they will need more money and they
will be taking 60 children a year away from other Wokingham schools, leaving these
schools with less money coming in when they are already struggling with budgets because
they are the lowest funded in the country. It looks like Bohunt is getting all the privileges
and the rest of our schools will be worse off as a result. What are you doing to help the
rest of our schools?
Supplementary Answer:
That is a question which will be requiring a written response, so that will be sent to you.

24

37.7 Peter Humphreys asked the Executive Member for Finance the following
question:
Back in April I phoned the Council and was reluctantly put through to the finance
department as I wished to ask some questions about the accounts extract published in
WBC’s Borough News. My key question was how much in total WBC had received in
developer contributions (s106 and CIL) in 2016/17 and was expecting for 2017/18. I was
told by an Officer that he didn’t have the information immediately to hand but that he would
get back to me.
A month later, well past the target response time, I received an email stating my questions
were “not a valid request as they were asking for an opinion/explanation/justification, not
for recorded information held by the Council”. That response is of course complete
nonsense to put me off asking embarrassing questions. I pursued the matter with WBC’s
legal department.
After various exchanges of emails the officer presumably read the definition of the word
“question” in the OED and had a change of heart and my other queries were accepted and
answered but not the key question re developer contributions.
Contrary to stated official policy the officer has not subsequently replied to my follow-up
email. I thus wish to know who within the Council (officer or / and councillor (s)) issued the
edict to block this information from public view.
Answer
I am sorry that you did not receive the answers to the question in a timely manner.
You have, I am assured, now received a response to your questions, including actual
developer contributions receipts for 2016/17 and forecast developer contributions receipts
for 2017/18.
To answer your specific question anyway:




Section 106 – In 2016/17, the Council raised £21m, of which £6m was outstanding
as at year end. Therefore, cash received in year was £15m;
For CIL – In 2016/17, the Council received £4.7m;
As far as expected contributions are concerned for 2017/18 for Section 106
according to the latest forecast, the Council expects to raise £32m and for CIL, the
Council expects to raise £6.2m.

I should emphasise that forecasts are totally dependent on developers bringing forward
housing development and if development does not commence, related contributions are
not received as planned.
Forecasts are updated quarterly. They are therefore subject to change if developments do
not come forward and/or if there are changes to the scope of development projects.
And finally, the CIL/S106 team are happy to provide non-commercially sensitive
information on request, and I understand that you now have a contact in the Council’s
specialist team dealing with this issue. Furthermore, annual reports containing this
information are available on the Council’s website.

25

Supplementary Question:
Thank you for the answer. I did actually obtain them from a different person in the Council
and I did actually get different figures including for last year which should be definitive and
audited by now. I can accept that forecasts do vary. This is not the first time that this has
happened when I have asked questions about public information. Who in the Council is
blocking this information and what steps are being taken to train officers now they are
aware of this situation, that they will not block information in the future and they are aware
of the Freedom of Information Act? Now we are aware of this situation, are staff going to
be trained so that they will answer legitimate questions in the future?
Supplementary Answer:
I cannot provide you with the total reassurance but what I can tell you is that you have
been given a very specific named person to answer the questions on Section 106 and CIL
monies and areas around that within Finance. We should be able to answer questions.
Sometimes it is difficult to know actually who to put the questions through to.
37.8 Diane Heyes had asked the Executive Member for Adults' Services the
following question but as she was unable to attend the meeting her question
was asked by Richard Gregory. In the Executive Member for Adults' Services
absence the question was answered by the Deputy Executive Member for
Adults' Services:
The buildings insurance premiums for about 250 shared ownership and leasehold tenants
which under our lease agreement have to be negotiated on the tenants behalf by the
Council has trebled over the last few years. Our bill this year is £490 for a 2 bedroom semi
detached which is buildings insurance only. This is apparently due to the small size of the
overall pool and a small number of significant claims. The rises have created a significant
difference between shared ownership tenants and neighbouring fully owned properties
who have the benefit of insuring through a much larger pool.
Please would the Council take steps to provide cost effective insurance on our properties
and ensure that the premiums do not rise faster than the general market rate for
household insurance. If this is not possible please would the Council allow its tenants and
shared equity owners to purchase cheaper insurance in the general private market
themselves.
Answer
The Council has taken and continues to take steps to try to provide the best cover at the
best price available. This cover was tendered in 2010 with a 5-year term. Cover was retendered in 2015. The insurers were appointed for a second 5-year term, and that is
reviewed annually.
This is a niche area of insurance with a very small number of insurers willing to quote for
this type of business: in 2015 only 3 insurers responded to the tender. The successful
bidder’s quote was by far the most competitive.
Claims under this policy have, however, been increasing significantly. The headline figure
is now that for every £1 the insurers have received in premium they have paid out £1.85 in
claims.
It is not possible for those affected to self-insure as it is in a term of their leases that the
Council insures these assets. Officers looked into this issue as part of the review and
decided the risk of allowing this cohort to insure themselves was a risk to the Council.

26

Wokingham Borough Council owns the freehold of leasehold homes, and owns up to 50%
of shared ownership properties so must make sure that its assets are protected.
37.9 Ian Young asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the
following question:
Reference Hyde End Road Shinfield. Bearing in mind:
1. That Hyde End Road is a busy commuter route, for Wokingham and local residents
travelling to and from Basingstoke and Junction 11 of the M4. A significant section
of the road is only just over 5 metres wide instead of the standard 7.3 metres.
2. The recent photographic evidence, sent to the Council, showing HGVs and buses
mounting the pavement to avoid each other, and endangering the lives of
pedestrians. This section of road has a blind bend, and the introduction of a new
bus service, using buses 3 metres wide, is making the problem much worse
Does the Council accept the need to provide an improved and safer route for pedestrians,
and a wider road for vehicles?
Answer
As you will be aware there is committed strategic development in line with the Council’s
adopted Core Strategy being delivered in this area which is currently affecting the network
whilst the associated infrastructure is being delivered.
Some of these works include the need for construction traffic to use Hyde End Road which
has added to other pressures resulted from other roadworks and closures which have
been or are currently taking place on Basingstoke Road and Church Lane and the
continued associated works with the Eastern Relief Road. Furthermore the Leopard bus
service is now routed along Hyde End Road as an interim arrangement to serve the first
phase of the Spencers Wood development.
The current redistribution of traffic, and particularly levels of construction traffic will reduce
once the major developments and their associated transport interventions are completed
which will result in the construction traffic being removed and allow the bus service to be
rerouted through the newly constructed housing developments.
You mention a ‘standard 7.3m road width’ in your question, which is incorrect. Firstly,
there is no requirement to build all the new main roads to this width and there is certainly
no requirement to widen the historic road network universally to 7.3m, including bus
routes. Excessively wide roads encourage higher vehicle speeds and attract overall
greater volumes of traffic to use the route, which is not what the Council, nor would I
expect what the local residents would want, for Hyde End Road. That said, the Council
recognises the current situation and narrow road width particularly on bends, then that is
raising some concerns on a particular stretch of Hyde End Road and we are looking into
various measures to improve the current unsatisfactory situation.
The measures at this time include; over the next two weekends, via Sunday road closures,
the Council will be installing advanced warning signs and cutting back vegetation to
provide some initial improvement. The Council are also engaging with local developers to
minimise the routing of construction vehicles on Hyde End Road.
In the medium term the Council are looking at options to provide a new footpath on the

27

north side of Hyde End Road between Croft Road and Millworth Lane, on land currently
owned by the University of Reading, which is behind the existing hedgerow, so segregated
from live traffic.
Longer term solutions are being investigated by officers. Widening the road would need to
consider the acquisition of land and the relocation of the statutory undertakers equipment
like gas and electricity. A major scheme would need to balance any local benefits against
the possibility that continuous road widening could increase vehicle speeds and
significantly increase the volume of the traffic using Hyde End Road, which the local
Council and we assume local residents and businesses would wish to avoid. Long term
options proposed will be subject to consultation with local Members, the parish councils,
local businesses and residents.
Supplementary Question:
Given that the dedicated bus route will not be available until 2020 and the construction
traffic will be there until 2024, are you happy that we can live with this Hyde End Road
situation?
Supplementary Answer:
Well, we are doing what we can in the short term as I explained and then we have medium
and longer term ideas that we will look into but I cannot be sure what will happen yet.
Officers are working on it and we will be keeping local residents informed.
37.10 Guy Grandison has asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport
the following question:
Can the Executive Member for Highways give an update on the Bus Service down
Silverdale Road and why the morning peak services were removed?
Answer
The morning peak journeys were operated commercially by Reading Buses so did not
form part of the recent renegotiation of the 19a and the 19c bus services which have now
been combined into the number 12, the subsidised part of that coming from Wokingham
Borough Council. These journeys benefited by sharing vehicles with another commercial
route to keep service costs down. Regrettably Reading Buses were unable to continue to
share the vehicles as per the previous arrangement, and due to increased service costs
were no longer able to provide the morning peak services along Silverdale Road.
Reading Buses are a partner of the Council and have made an approach regarding the
reduced service. Since the approach the Council have been investigating various options
to support and enhance this reduced service, and discussions continue and will shortly
include a consultation with effected residents. Financial contributions to support bus
services are substantial, and the Council needs to be assured that any financial support
offered represents value for money to the Borough’s residents before a formal agreement
can be entered into.
Supplementary Question:
I am very pleased to hear about continuing investigations in this area, an issue which is a
key topic for everyone down Silverdale Road and Maiden Erlegh at the moment. In fact I
am working on a campaign to support a business case on this, so can I count on the
Council’s support on that?

28

Supplementary Answer:
I am very grateful Guy for any help you can give in that area.
37.11 Simon Cooper asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the
following question:
As a result of an accident that occurred at my property on the 21 January that sadly
resulted in the loss of life of a passenger of the vehicle and the subsequent two serious
accidents, the continued speeding issues that have been reported to both Thames Valley
Police and Wokingham Borough Council. Please can the member responsible for
Highways Chris Bowring advise on what actions will be taken and by when to resolve the
speeding issues that plague Grazeley residents before another serious accident occurs
and can Chris please advise what would be required to lower the speed limit in the village?
Answer
From your previous discussions with the Highways Team on the matter you will be aware
the responsibility to enforce the existing 40mph speed limit lies with the Police, as the
speed enforcement agency.
Regarding the regrettable fatal accident that occurred in January this year, Police record
state that the primary factor was “travelling too fast for the conditions”. The 40mph speed
restriction is the limit, and drivers should travel at an appropriate speed for the traffic, road
conditions and weather along the route they are travelling at any given time.
Although the Council and Police consider the 40mph speed limit appropriate for this
location, the Council have recently installed mobile speed-limit Vehicle Activated Signs
that should encourage motorists to restrict their speed to below 40mph.
Additionally the Council have agreed to undertake speed surveys in this locality within the
next few months. If there are problem areas identified from these surveys, then the
Council will engage with the Police and agree appropriate measures to remedy the
problem.
Supplementary Question:
Just a point of clarity, there is no speed indicators in the locality. As Thames Valley Police
have now identified the need for and established a problem solving plan, can I confirm that
the Council will assist the Police in their quest to resolve this issue by providing the
necessary resources such as speed monitoring strips in Grazeley?
Supplementary Answer:
Yes, as I indicated the Council is aware of the problem and will certainly work with the
Police to find a resolution.
38.
PETITIONS
The following member of the public presented a petition in relation to the matter indicated.
The Mayor’s decision as to the action to be taken is set out against each petition.
Mr Geoff Smith

Mr Smith presented a petition of
approximately 230 signatures
regarding road safety on Reading
Road, Wokingham.

29

To be forwarded to the Executive
Member for Highways and
Transport
39.

PRESENTATION BY THE CHIEF CONSTABLE, FRANCIS HABGOOD AND THE
DEPUTY POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR THAMES VALLEY,
MATTHEW BARBER
The Council received presentations from Matthew Barber, Deputy Police and Crime
Commissioner for Thames Valley and Francis Habgood, Chief Constable of Thames
Valley Police.
In his presentation the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner referred to 2016-17 Crime
Performance Headlines. It was noted that crime was on the increase across the country;
however, the overall increase in crime remained low in the Thames Valley. He also
highlighted the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Strategic Priorities for 2017 – 21.
In his presentation the Chief Constable outlined how Thames Valley Police was working
and would continue to work to meet its priorities. He also highlighted the priorities for
2017/18, including cutting crimes of most concern, protecting vulnerable people, reducing
repeat demand and bringing offenders to justice.
Following the presentations, Members asked a number of questions relating to:











Restoring confidence amongst residents in Loddon and what ward Members could
do to assist the Neighbourhood Team in building relationships;
Progress with sharing facilities with other Blue Light services, councils and other
agencies;
Submission of evidence of bad driving;
Funding and resources dedicated to dealing with terrorism and security matters;
Equipping officers appropriately in the event of a terror attack locally;
Powers regarding traveller incursions;
How to ensure that cyclists wore reflective clothing and had lights on their bikes
during the winter months;
Rural crime;
How Thames Valley Police dealt with reports of those with mental health issues in
crisis;
Cybercrime.

The Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable answered these
questions at the meeting.
Members thanked the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable for
their presentations.
40.
MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor informed the meeting that he and the Deputy Mayor had attended several fetes
during the summer and had been impressed by the work of a number of charities.
The Mayor invited Members to an event that he would be hosting on 17 February 2018 at
the Hilton Hotel to help raise money to enable the purchase of a portable cancer scanner
for the Royal Berkshire Hospital.

30

41.
TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2016-17
The Council received the Treasury Management Outturn Report 2016-17 as set out on
pages 45 to 74 of the agenda.
Oliver Whittle in presenting the report highlighted the role of the Council’s Treasurer. It
was noted that the Council’s debt had increased from £47.8m to £65.8m. The Housing
Revenue debts had reduced from £85m to £81.5m. It was also noted that Capital
Expenditure had been £72m for the General Fund and £4.9m for the Housing Revenue
Account. Details on the Council’s return on investments were also provided.
It was proposed by Oliver Whittle and seconded by Charles Margetts that the
recommendations contained within the report be agreed.
RESOLVED: That
1)

it be noted that this report was presented to the Audit Committee on 13 June 2017
and the Executive on the 27 July 2017;

2)

the following be approved:

42.

(a)

the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2016/17; and

(b)

the actual 2016/17 prudential indicators within the report.

STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS,
AND DEPUTY EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

David Lee, Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Strategic Highways and
Planning
I just want to mention a few things about planning which seems to be making all the
running in the newspapers at the moment. Just to remind everybody that we are a
planning authority and we must comply with the law which requires us to assess our future
housing need and determine where this housing should go and ensure that we achieve the
vital infrastructure. This is called establishing a Local Plan.
We are currently updating our existing Local Plan to take us up to 2036. The first stage in
this review is to determine objectively our housing numbers which has been calculated at
856 per annum. A new national method from the Government which will be brought in
formally in April potentially shows this needs to be 879. We then have to determine where
these houses should go and we request landowners in the Borough to submit their
proposed sites for consideration. We received 263 such sites. Our role now is to assess
all these sites to arrive at a considered and professionally researched opinion as to the
best sites to accommodate these numbers.
If we do not carry out such a robust assessment when our Plan is publicly examined we
will lose arguments put forward by aggrieved landowners whose sites have not been
approved, nor properly assessed. The research that we do will cover all aspects; are they
near transport hubs, doctors’ surgeries, flood areas etc. including the impact on the
countryside and Green Belt. We have commissioned Master Planners to help with this
review and they will be starting with the three largest sites submitted; Grazeley, Barkham
Square and Twyford. In terms of having pre agreed any of these, which we keep hearing
we have, please note paragraph 3.23 of the tender document, taking as an example

31

Twyford, if the sites are to be allocated a major part of the evidence base would be to
justify why growth here i.e. the Green Belt, and not elsewhere in the Borough instead
should take place. No decisions have been taken.
We are assessing sites which have been put forward by landowners in this Borough. In
the case of Grazeley, this is a joint submission with Wokingham Council, Reading Council
and West Berkshire Council. The logic behind this large application is an attempt to
establish, with Government approval, a large site to protect as much as possible of our
much valued countryside. Much has been said in the past about leaked documents and
secret plans of this Authority. We have no secret plans nor have we identified where some
20,000 houses should go by 2036. What we are doing is to determine the best possible
locations which causes the least damage. 20,000 houses will cause damage there is no
doubt about that. We could use the approach of simply ignoring the law and leave all the
decision making to opportunistic developers and a distant Planning Inspector from Bristol
or work together to get the best for all our residents. This should not be a political football.
We have to do this, we have to get the best for all our residents. We are Borough
representatives here. We are not Parish councillors, we have to look after 168,000
residents. I fully intend to do my best for all residents. In my own Ward we have already
suffered an extra 33% more units than required even under the current Plan and
congestion in Wokingham town is getting near breaking point.
The only light at the end of the tunnel is the fact that five new bypasses are coming onstream in the next few years. This was achieved by planning where the current batch of
houses should go. Councillor Cowan, who is here tonight, was instrumental in achieving
this much needed infrastructure for all our residents. So we have got the five new
bypasses, a new secondary school and I think it is seven new primary schools and many
country parks; one of which was damaged my question earlier to the Police. We can work
together as a team of Town, Parish and Borough councillors and residents’ groups to do
the same for this plan, or divide and try and protect our own patches and the developers
will have won. By working together and establishing a robust Plan we will have minimised
the damage and maximised the infrastructure. So please work together to achieve the
best possible outcome for every resident and stop trying to make political gain.
Simon Weeks, Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement
Last Wednesday, Councillor David Lee and I had a meeting in Parliament with the Housing
and Planning Minister, Alok Sharma. We drew his attention to the 13,000 new houses
which already have planning permission across the Borough, many of which have yet to
be built. Wokingham Borough Council’s responsibility is to develop a Local Plan for new
homes and ensure that appropriate infrastructure is included prior to granting planning
permission. We have already done this. Unfortunately developers are not building these
permitted new homes at the rate that is meeting either local demand or government
expectations. This situation is attracting speculative developers to submit applications to
develop unsuitable and inappropriate applications. Such applications are likely to be
refused by Wokingham if they are not compliant with our Local Plan, particularly as we
currently have an adequate five year land supply. Developers then challenge our refusals
at appeal and Planning Inspectors are sometimes persuaded that Wokingham is not
providing sufficient homes, so they allow the appeal. This does not help address the
shortfall in new homes at all. It simply adds further to the 13,000 permitted but unbuilt
homes. It also contradicts and undermines the NPPF, which emphasises that planning
decisions should be made at a local level by elected representatives. We explained that
this situation was unsustainable and the Minister agreed to look at the detailed information
we provided.

32

Chris Bowring, Executive Member for Highways and Transport
I am very keen to liaise effectively with Town and Parish Councils, and where possible and
appropriate, to devolve powers to them. Two examples of devolution are taking place in
Highways and Transport at the present time. At the request of Woodley Town Council we
have been carrying out a 12 month experiment in Woodley using car park tariffs which
differ from the rest of the Borough. Wokingham Borough Council’s concern in doing this
was that the revenue from the car parks might fall because of the changed tariffs. From
the data received so far this does not appear to have happened, although we will of course
complete the 12 month period of the assessment. Should the Woodley tariffs become
permanent I would encourage other towns and parishes to propose their own schemes
should they so wish. I believe that Town and Parish councils are ultimately the local
experts in many matters and a strong relationship between them and this Council can only
be of benefit to both.
Next month too, Civil Parking Enforcement comes into force and again there is an element
of devolution here whereby Town and Parish councils can purchase extra enforcement
and comment on the suitability of enforcement in their area. Indeed one Parish Councillor
asked me recently whether his Parish Council could run its own Civil Parking Enforcement.
I’ve asked Officers to consider this idea, one which, at least to me, is an attractive one.
Finally, can I remind the Members of the Civil Parking Enforcement presentation which
takes place next Monday? I hope many councillors are able to attend.
Norman Jorgensen, Executive Member for Environment, Sports, Environmental
Health, Leisure and Libraries
We had another successful Marvellous Festival on the weekend of the 29th and 30th July
and despite some wet weather, numbers were roughly the same as last year.
Construction work on the California Greenway is practically complete and officers are now
working on a lighting scheme for our section of the route. They are also working on
designs for phase 2 of the California Greenway that will deliver the link to Nine Mile Ride
equestrian.
Thirdly, the first phase of major improvements work commenced earlier this month at
California Country Park in Finchampstead. The first phase will include an improved car
park layout providing easier parking, a new canopy to provide an all-weather outdoor
covered café seating area, and a new two-way road to give better vehicle access. We
plan to keep disruption to a minimum and that the project will aim to be completed around
Easter 2018. There will be further improvements planned to the park after that.
Turning to libraries, the number of children joining in the Summer Reading Challenge was
2,426 – this is about the same as last year. During that time we issued 109,457 Children’s
books and stock; this was an 8% increase on the books issued last year. 375 new
members joined because of the Summer Reading Challenge. Also, we held a number of
events over the summer for children and 1,356 children attended 98 separate events.
Finally on that the usage of our self-service kiosks continues to be positive, last week it
was at 52% across our libraries.
The final topic I would like to raise is related to recycling. You will be aware from having
read the agenda for the Executive meeting next week that there is a paper proposing the
separate collection of food waste which if approved will significantly increase the amount
of material we recycle in this Borough.

33

Richard Dolinski, Deputy Executive Member for Adults' Services, Health, Wellbeing
and Housing
A week ago I was scanning through our local paper and I saw a quote from Councillor
Croy who was actually calling for more council houses and I could not agree with him
more. I am pleased to say that the number of affordable housing completions during
2016-17 was 212 and the number predicted to complete in 2017-18 is estimated at around
500. That is a make-up of both social housing and shared ownership.
Our other achievements and progress to date. The Council housing stock has
successfully achieved a high standard of decency shown by 90% of the stock currently
meeting the Decent Homes Standards; as I think one of our residents pointed out earlier
on. Furthermore, there are regular stock condition surveys which enable the service to
plan and monitor those that do fall out and require work needing to bring them back to
standard.
New flatlets used for temporary accommodation at Foxwood site are now being developed
and families will be moving in mid-September of this year. This will help towards achieving
the goal of self-sufficiency for temporary accommodation.
The Tape Lane project has now been approved and work on decanting residents and
temporary contracts has commenced.
The Gorse Ride regeneration project is developing and approval received from the
Executive for Cockayne Court and Arnett Avenue bungalows to be demolished and the
site to be redeveloped. A Project Manager has been appointed and will be progressing
this scheme and we are actually very lucky to have this person, who is very, very highly
qualified. 52 Reading Road, progress is continuing at a fast pace. The tender process for
service support specifications is now underway and the tenders are due to be evaluated in
October 2017.
Last two points. Ecomotive has been commissioned to undertake the follow on from the
initial feasibility work carried out by John Broome Associates on potential self-build
projects. This will commence in October 2017 and will complete by March 2018. Finally,
Wokingham Borough Council in partnership with Housing Solutions, Thames Valley
Housing and Bracknell Forest Homes run a successful Strive project with 20 people
graduating from the course. Feedback showed that all graduates rated this course as
either ‘excellent’ or ‘good.’
Stuart Munro, Executive Member for Business and Economic Development and
Regeneration
Bit of good news. The third phase of the superfast broadband project is now underway
after contracts were awarded to BT and Gigaclear. This will extend superfast coverage to
more than 99.5% of properties in Berkshire by the end of 2019, making it one of the best
served counties for superfast broadband across the UK, benefiting residents and
businesses alike. In Wokingham coverage will reach 99.53% by the end of the third phase
of the project; well up on the 90.4% in 2013 and 91.8% currently.

34

43.

STATEMENTS FROM COUNCIL OWNED COMPANIES

Gary Cowan, Non-Executive Director Loddon Homes Limited
As well as managing our existing units, our other key focus is working with Wokingham
Borough Council and Optalis on the arrangements for the housing management and care
provision at Fosters Extra Care scheme. Letting plans are being carefully co-ordinated with
WBC, who are having to take account of letting Housing Solutions’ Extra Care scheme at
the Birches, also in Wokingham, and how best to re-house Cockayne Court residents,
which is due to close at the end of this year.
Promotion of Fosters to make sure all Borough residents and professionals are aware of
the scheme continues. The latest event took place in August where we hosted an event
which was very well attended with around 25 professionals attending and we anticipate
that this will further spread the word about Extra Care coming soon to Woodley.
The latest business plan has been produced and discussed at our September Board which
shows the company has a strong future in meeting its key objectives of providing
affordable homes for those in need within the Borough; while also providing a sound
ongoing income stream for Council services.
We were pleased to see the new dedicated WBC Housing Officer working on our stock
who started in August and we believe that this will help us deliver a service to our existing
and new tenants, which I hope will be very good.
We are also looking forward to the recruitment of a Service and Compliance Officer jointly
with Berry Brook Homes, to make sure that the Boards can be fully reassured about the
services provided by our managing agent to the residents. We are keen to see the post in
place as early as possible.
David Lee, Non-Executive Director WBC (Holdings) Limited
I wonder if I could just make a comment on what Gary has said. I think they have done an
excellent job. There will now be two superb Extra Care buildings in Woodley and I would
urge any Member who wants to see round this, especially bearing in mind the problems
we had when we wanted to replace the Fosters home, and I think it would be very good to
invite anyone round.
Stuart Munro on behalf of Alistair Auty, Non-Executive Director Wokingham Housing
Limited
Some good news items I think and some concerning items. At present Wokingham
Housing has 112 homes under construction over 7 sites. To date we passed over the
management to Loddon Homes and Berry Brook Homes of 35 new homes and one
refurbished scheme of 3 units. A further 19 units at Phoenix Avenue have been handed
over this week to Berry Brook Homes so we are getting there. The delays on Phoenix
Avenue means that while the majority of the 68 homes will be completed and handed over
before the end of October, we will not deliver the last 8 homes until early December, which
is frustrating. We are now applying for full liquidated and ascertained damages (LADs as
they are called) to invoice each month which in total is estimated to be between £6575,000.
Fosters Extra Care which you have already heard about continues to progress well and is
on budget. The contractor Leafields have been let down by the lift supplier, Stannah, who
are not fitting the 2 lifts until the end of November. The development should be complete

35

by mid-October but we will not be able to let the first floor units until the lift has been
installed.
As you heard earlier from Richard, 52 Reading Road is progressing well and is on time
and budget. Anson Walk flats continue to progress well, although we have no further
information of any additional costs likely to be involved in moving the electrical cable, also
found unexpectedly across the site. Again additional costs will be recouped from the
surveying company. Grovelands has a similar situation with another of these cables
again. Elizabeth Road and Barrett Crescent sites are progressing well and are on time
and to budget. The contract for Norton Road has now been let to LifeBuild following the
necessary Board approvals and will begin construction in early November. We also
expect to be able to appoint the contractor for 2 shared ownership homes to be built at
Finch Road shortly, as part of the joint venture with Burrwood Development, to build 6
homes on the joint site. Several future potential sites are currently being considered in
close consultation with WBC and the Commissioner.
Anthony Pollock, Non-Executive Director Optalis Holdings Limited
I wanted to inform Council that we have appointed a new Chief Executive at Optalis,
Martin Farrow, who started work on 4 September and I am very pleased with his
appointment. I am confident that he will provide the leadership which the company
requires during the current project of integrating the service of the Royal Borough with the
Wokingham Borough services already being provided by Optalis. The integration project
is on track and I would like to pay tribute to the hard work and commitment of Optalis staff
to the successful creation of one organisation through this integration programme.
Finances are on track and we expect a small profit in the current year. Work is underway
publicising the merger of Wokingham and Royal Borough’s Adult Social Care Services and
at the national conference in October in Bournemouth we will use the event to publicise
the benefits of Optalis delivering services to both councils. I believe that our experiences
and those of other local authority trading companies will lead to at least one other council
considering joining Optalis in the future.
44.
MEMBER QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited Members to submit questions
to the appropriate Members
44.1 Gary Cowan asked the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and
Planning the following question:
Page 68 of the July Executive Report (Local Plan Update Options Development) relates to
a duty to co-operate and it states that the Council has been and continues to work closely
with other local authorities. Can I have dates these meetings took place, who was present
and copies of all the meeting notes?
Answer
Local Plans cannot be completed in isolation with many planning issues requiring
discussion and cooperation over a wider area. The Council has been and continues to
work closely with other local authorities and organisations. A number of joint evidence
studies have been commissioned, notably those relating to the need for housing and
economic development such as the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and
the Economic Development Needs Assessment (EDNA). What I have done is I have got
hard copies for you. I can give you those tonight for some light reading tonight in bed. I
do not think you want me to read all of this out. If you want I shall send you a soft copy.

36

Supplementary Question:
With respects to working closely with other councils, at the last Executive meeting
Councillor Lee did say that we would talk to all the various parish councils, resident groups
etc. about what the Local Plan involves, yet there was a press release completely
unexpectedly which mentioned the potential evaluation by Master Planners of Barkham,
Grazeley and Twyford, and I just wondered what meetings he had had with the local
Borough councillors, Parish councillors and residents in those wards?
Supplementary Answer:
We have had no meetings as yet but we will be meeting, and I think I mentioned it earlier
on, we will be meeting with Ward Members, with Parish and Town Members and
Residents’ Groups. We are setting out a list of sites that we are going to look at over a
period of time and everyone will be invited to those.
44.2 Lindsay Ferris asked the Executive Member for Adults' Services the following
question which in his absence was answered by the Deputy Executive
Member for Adult's Services:
It has come to my attention that a number of our residents, who are leaseholders of WBC
owned properties, have been hit with increases of over 100% in their Household Buildings
Insurance for the year 2017/2018. Many people are struggling to make ends meet at the
moment and such a large increase could cause significant financial problems for such
residents. It would also appear that these residents are unable to find their own Insurance
due to various policies within WBC thereby leaving them with an unreasonable take it or
leave it, anti-competitive approach from this Council. What is the Executive Member going
to do to rectify this position?
Answer
A number of possibilities are being looked at, at the moment, to try to reduce the
premiums. However, the retendering of the insurance for 2018 is not recommended.
There are currently just 4 insurers that is all, just 4 insurers who provide this type of
business. One of these is new to the market and is not providing competitive quotes, one
is very commercially focused and will often not quote for these types of risks in isolation.
Therefore given the claims history and no improvements in the overall risk the two most
likely outcomes are that no insurers will quote and we will be left without any cover and we
just cannot be left in that position or there is only one or two insurers who might respond
but purely on a commercial basis, meaning another very significant premium increase.
Supplementary Question:
I know there are only these 4 companies but is there any way the Council can think about
allowing individuals to do their own house insurance? I understand that there are some
issues but if you could give me a written reply and I will see about that. At the moment the
residents seem to have got stuffed.
Supplementary Answer:
I am very happy to do that.
44.3 Prue Bray asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the
following question:
How does the income so far received from the charging for overnight and Sunday parking
compare to the income predicted? Please include information on the trial in Woodley,
which substituted an additional charge for the first hour instead of Sunday and overnight

37

charges, and provide the figures by individual car park.
Answer
Early signs are encouraging in that the Sunday and Evening car parking charges are
meeting their financial expectations and income from the Woodley car parking trial broadly
mirrors what was expected.
The Council requires more parking data to be available to be certain, and plans to assess
one full year’s data from the Woodley trial before making a permanent decision. To allow
sufficient time for this the Executive will next week be asked to approve a recommendation
to extend the Woodley Car Parking Trial until January 2018, so a permanent decision
regarding Woodley can be made at that time.
Regarding your request for detailed figures and analysis for individual car parks across the
Borough, the Parking Team have been understandably prioritising Civil Parking
Enforcement which goes live from October 2017, so this manual data extraction and
analysis exercise has not been a priority for the team. However, as we move into Phase 2
of the 21st Century Council over the next 6 months with improved IT, plus the increased
resources and parking IT from our Civil Parking Enforcement contractors NSL, this
detailed parking data and analysis will be more readily available moving forward.
Supplementary Question:
That was a very interesting answer in which I note that there were no figures. In August
we asked Officers for information about the income and were told it was not available for
the exact reasons you specified, the team that deals with this has been reduced so much,
no one had the time or ability to produce any detailed figures, and I notice the Woodley car
park trial is going on. Can you tell me how it is possible to manage Council’s car parks
properly if no one can look at the details of the income for several months?
Supplementary Answer:
I think we need to take a long term view on that. It is quite understandable that in many
areas of the Council that during the 21st Century Council implementation there are going to
be resources that we are not entirely lacking. I am quite happy that this is a small hiatus
and that we will be back to normal and will have full figures available to you in the near
future.
44.4 Tim Holton asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport the
following question:
I and the residents of Hawkedon are concerned that the junction with Hatch Farm and
Earley Way North, which is already very congested, will become even worse if that is
possible. I have already spoken at length with the Executive Member on this issue and I
would like confirmation that the lights at this junction and Showcase roundabout can be
linked to ensure the free flow of traffic.
Answer
Both the existing traffic lights at Showcase Roundabout and the new junction on Lower
Earley Way will be utilising Microprocessor Optimised Vehicular Actuation otherwise
known as MOVA.
MOVA optimises signal timings based on the incoming traffic on a cycle by cycle basis.
Linking the two sets of lights will restrict the ability for MOVA to react to changes in traffic
demand on each of the various approaches and could ultimately increase delays during

38

peak times.
The congestion currently experienced along Lower Earley Way, from Showcase towards
Sindlesham Roundabout, will not be removed by the introduction of the Lower Earley Way
Junction, although there is a scheme planned for 2019 which will deliver some
improvements. Regrettably there are likely to be times during peak periods when traffic
backs through the junction and a link as suggested will not alleviate this. However, I am
grateful you did mention the possibility of putting some sort of link in if things do not work
out as expected. As part of the current works there are no plans to establish a physical
link but in the future it should be possible to put in a virtual link which would be established
by utilising an Urban Traffic Control system, which both junctions will be connected to via
broadband communications.
Supplementary Question:
Will Lower Earley Way North have priority at the Showcase roundabout over the
Wokingham Road from Wokingham as this will very much now be a secondary road?
Supplementary Answer:
The roundabout will benefit from MOVA. The MOVA system allows the prioritisation you
suggest. However prioritisation will form part of the detailed design process and will be
subject to refinement and modification to provide optimum traffic flows once the new
scheme is fully operational so the system learns as it goes along.
44.5 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Finance the
following question:
What departments have been included and already participating in phase 2 of 21stCentury Council?
Answer
As a member of the Officer/Member working group you will know that Phase 2 of the
programme has begun. This Phase will be split into two parts and the rationale for this is
that as Phase 2 is larger and more complex than Phase 1 it makes sense to ensure a safe
transition. The departments in scope in each of the two parts of Phase 2 are:
For the first part





Environment
Income, Assessments, Collection and Payments Service
Customer Services and
Children’s Social Care and Early Help

And for Part 2:







Adult Social Care
Integrated Mental Health
Education
Housing
Public Health and
Leisure

Supplementary Question:
How will the new CEO and the interim CEO be involved in this project?

39

Supplementary Answer:
I cannot answer for any new CEO or Chief Executive but the interim Chief Executive is
involved and indeed I had an extensive meeting with her yesterday.
44.6 John Jarvis had asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question but in his absence a written answer was provided:
Could the Executive Member explain the Council’s approach to grass-cutting for the
benefit of residents who are writing to me concerned about the failure to cut grass until it is
so long the resultant mulch is both unsightly and prevents use of the landscaped areas?
There are particular concerns that during this summer holidays grass cutting of
playgrounds etc did not occur until after the children had returned to school.
Answer
The Grounds Maintenance Contract is not based around frequency of cutting but instead
around outcomes which, in the case of residential areas, means that it should not grow
any longer than five inches.
If the grass is longer when cut on a play area (an allocated area where ball games etc. can
be played) we can deploy alternative machinery to rectify the issue of laying grass if that
occurs.
We will be meeting with ISS to discuss the current cutting season and will be looking at
ways to improve the service further. While recognising that not all areas can be cut at the
same time, I would like designated play areas to be cut at the start of the Summer School
holiday, so that will be one issue to be discussed.
44.7 Dianne King asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question which was answered by the Executive Member for Planning and
Enforcement:
I have read that some Councils are threatening fines of up to £2500 if residents overload
bins or put them out late or too early amongst other things. Could I ask the Executive
Member to reassure my residents that this will not be happening in Wokingham?
Answer
We are fortunate that we have high levels of resident support and participation in our
weekly waste and recycling services. However, Officers visit and give advice to any
household that are identified as needing guidance on using our services more efficiently
and effectively, so we have not needed to invoke penalties in the Borough thanks to our
residents’ understanding and cooperation.
45.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD MATTERS

45.1 Parry Batth asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question:
HMO applications, both licenses and planning, in my ward Shinfield North, are being
approved by West Berkshire. Currently when considering these applications parking
congestion is not considered at all, although inevitably HMO’s add additional parking
burden on the estates such as Shinfield Park in my ward. Can I ask the Executive
Member for Planning that he exercises his full authority and change the rules and insist
that parking congestion is taken into account when considering HMO applications?

40

Answer:
This is mainly a licensing issue rather than a planning one, hence I will take it. The
applications of course go into our shared licensing service so it is not West Berkshire as
such, it is our shared licensing service. Under the HMO process parking is not one of the
issues that can be looked at under the licensing application. As Parry is aware we looked
at this under the scrutiny committee a number of times during 2015 and 2016 and clearly
parking in the Shinfield Park Estate is a major issue. I really do sympathise with the
residents there. It was planned, and the application went in, under the John Prescott
scheme, where despite him having 2 cars, he thought everybody else could make do with
half a car. It is built on that basis and there is a parking issue there. One of the things that
scrutiny came up with was to see if there was any other space that could be used for
parking and that is an ongoing thing. If residents or the Parish Council can identify space
that might be a way forward. The Borough Council, alas, does not have money in its
budget for that. So at the moment parking is not one of the issues that we look at when
we get an application. We have got to just look at whether the house is suitable and all the
conditions are met. I think to try and get a change in the policy, rather than us locally
doing it, we need to ensure that the Government changes the rules so I would encourage
you to write to our MP and if you need my support, I am happy to do that as well. I think
that needs to come from there rather than locally but I really do sympathise with residents
on that estate.
45.2 Gary Cowan asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question:
I received the planning notification number 172284 for the removal of 2 TPO trees on 13
September. I immediately asked for some more information but I never got a reply. The
listed determination date was 9 October. I chased it up with the PC only to get an email
stating it was approved on 9 September which was actually before the consultation ever
started. I found this odd so I contacted the Manager responsible only for him to state that
work to remove healthy trees to implant a planning permission is acceptable and there is
no requirement to consult. He added that any comment on this received would have made
no difference to the decision. The Manager also stated that there is no legislation
requiring consultation with Borough and Parish councillors on TPO applications. The
concern I have for this is if this is how Borough and Parish councillors are treated by
ignoring localism then what hope have residents got of protecting any healthy tree in
conservation areas that are at risk of removal and could Norman assure me that he will
look into this matter and report back to the Council?
Answer:
I think it is important to say that Gary has quite an exchange of emails with the Officers
responsible so probably nothing much that I say will be a surprise to him but just to put it
on the record. I think that the Officer did say that if there had been a response it may have
made no difference rather than would have no difference, just to correct that one point.
Under the TPO Regulations there is no requirement to undertake consultation with the
public, Members or Town and Parish councils in respect of tree work applications. This is
primarily due to the technical nature of the application. This approach is not a Wokingham
Borough Council decision but set out in the legislation.
There is an 8 week period for determining a Tree Works Application (TWA) and this is to
allow the authority time to assess the specification, visit the trees and respond with a

41

decision notice. It is incumbent upon councils to determine the TWAs as quickly as
possible and there is no formal consultation period. Once a full assessment of the Tree
Works Application is undertaken, the Council can determine this.
While the Council does not consult on TWAs, they are given a planning application
number and appear on the Council’s website for audit purposes and transparency. The
Council also notifies Town and Parish Councils and Ward Members for information only
and this is made clear on the notification email. This is to inform members of what is going
on in their area and also so they are aware that works to trees are authorised.
In this case, the removal of the trees was necessary to implement a planning application.
As consultation was undertaken in respect of the planning application, the Parish Council
were given the opportunity to make representations at that time.
With regard to the application not being on the website, I will look into this further and
come back to you Gary.
45.3 Prue Bray asked the Executive Member of Highways and Transport the
following question:
Question:
Southern Gas Networks have been working in Churchill Drive in Winnersh since June,
putting in new replacement gas mains and they have dug up the road, they have dug up
the verge and they have taken out some trees. What can you do to make sure they
reinstate things properly including replacing the trees that they have removed?
Answer:
I will talk to the appropriate officer first thing in the morning.
45.4 Andy Croy asked the Deputy Executive Member for Adults' Services the
following question which was answered by the Executive Member for
Strategic Highways and Planning:
Question:
When I am door knocking in my Ward people often ask me ‘when will I get my council
house?’ I asked the Housing department a couple of months ago how many people were
waiting for the council houses and the answer was about 1700. Yesterday Councillor
Pauline Jorgensen published information which said that we would complete 100 council
houses by April next year and about 50-70 per year after. Given those two sets of
numbers what reassurances can you give me Councillor Dolinski that residents in my
Ward would not have to wait 25 to 30 years before they get a council house?
Answer:
I will take that as I am on the Holding Company which is a subsidiary of the Housing
Company.
I am quite happy to actually come back to you in terms of the numbers we are building but
it will be more than that. We have a 35% requirement on all applications, and as was
mentioned earlier by Simon, there are 13,000 current applications outstanding. So I
cannot comment on what someone has said somewhere else. I can tell you what the facts
are. We have a housing company which has substantial commuted sums available to it
and borrowings to build council housing of all types. You also heard, I think earlier too,
that we have got 500, 100 of which will be built by our own housing company. So I can get
you the figures, happy to have a chat with you, but we are building substantial numbers of

42

affordable housing in this Borough.
45.5 Philip Houldsworth asked the Executive Member for Finance the following
question:
Question:
I am very conscious now that Members are being offered training under the 21st century
programme and I would like to see that extended to parish councillors as well, which I am
sure will enhance the valuable duty they do already.
Answer:
I can assure you that we will be providing training to parish and town councillors at the
appropriate time.
45.6 Clive Jones asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question:
Several Hawkedon residents have expressed concerns to me that the new development at
Hatch Farm Dairy will cause flooding in their homes in Hawkedon ward. Will you
guarantee to these residents that their homes will not be flooded?
Answer:
As you might expect it is not really within my remit to guarantee that they will not be
flooded. The site went through the planning approval process and provided that
everything was done properly in that process then it should not result in any more flooding
than otherwise would have been the case.
45.7 Pauline Jorgensen asked the Executive Member for Highways and Transport
the following question:
Question:
I have had quite a lot of questions from local residents prompted by changes to the 19a
and 19c bus services and some confusing and maybe inaccurate information provided
apparently by Reading Buses to local residents about bus funding. I met the Executive
Member and Officers to discuss the situation last week and I wonder if Chris could give us
an update on what is being done to resolve the issues?
Answer:
The extension of the contract between the Council and Reading Buses of the 19a and 19c
buses, now renamed the 12 bus, succeeded in maintaining a good offpeak service. The
Council committed to a larger subsidy to do this. However, some of the well-used peak
services have been removed by the bus company, which is owned by the Labour
controlled Reading Borough Council. This was of particular inconvenience to people
having early morning hospital appointments at the Royal Berkshire Hospital. The Council
is using its best endeavours to remedy this unfortunate position which has arisen despite
the Council’s willingness to commit funds to help some of our most vulnerable residents,
but unfortunately I have been advised that the Council is not allowed to subsidise
commercial services, which this service is.
45.8 Anthony Pollock asked the Executive Member for Strategic Highways and
Planning the following question:
Question:
I have a question on the Shinfield East relief road. Rumour has it, I was told today, that
Hochtief have said that it will not be completed by Christmas and it might not be completed

43

until next summer. I hear rumours that when testing the drains on this road that some of
them have been discovered to have collapsed already before any traffic has gone through
it. I realise that this is not one of our projects. I realise that this is that wonderful institution
called Reading University who rape and pillage my ward for as much money as they can
raise, but that is another matter. I wondered whether the relevant Executive Member had
any knowledge of this, or could give me any reassurance that perhaps it is not as bad as I
have been led to believe?
Answer:
I attended a forum last night at the Three Mile Cross Church. The Reading University had
their stand right beside Hochtief. I think everyone was a bit embarrassed and no, they did
not give any firm date. I think if we went for Christmas maybe next year that might be sort
of near the date. It is a bit of a mess. It is maybe an example of why we should actually
make sure that we do the roads ourselves in the future. I also had a conversation with the
University chap about exactly what you said, the ‘raping and pillaging’ of your particular
area because it is from a very environmentally aware university who are only aware when
it is somewhere else and not their land. I have every sympathy with the residents trying to
get on to that road but there is very little that we can do about it.
45.9 Beth Rowland asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question:
Many residents in my ward see regular press releases regarding a lot of money being
spent on Wokingham Town centre and Carnival Pool. However, they do not see anything
at all about Bulmershe Pool redevelopment, which seems to have dropped off whatever
list it was on. Please will you tell me when the proposed redevelopment of this valued
Woodley pool will begin?
Answer:
I think if you look at the Executive Forward Programme you will see that the plan is to bring
a paper to the October Executive regarding the Bulmershe Leisure Centre, so there should
be information available to you very shortly.
45.10 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Environment the
following question:
Question:
Can someone explain to me why the parks in Winnersh have not had their grass cut but
the parks in Wokingham have? Have you subbed it out to Hochtief or something like this to
do the work?
Answer:
It is difficult to answer generic questions like that. I think I need specifics about which
parks and when. It would be useful to have such information in writing when it arises
rather than bringing it up at a Council meeting like this just to try and catch me on the hop.
The parks are cut regularly and if there are problems with it, please write to me and let me
know.

44

45.11 Imogen Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Planning and
Enforcement the following question:
Question:
Within Emmbrook in Toutley Depot there has appeared this concrete batching plant that is
3 stories tall. I understand that it has been agreed that it should have planning
enforcement on it but unfortunately Wokingham Borough Council own the depot so
therefore they cannot enforce against themselves. It has now gone to Property to look at
because it is obviously to do with the lease. In the meantime residents in my ward have
been putting up with the concrete bashing plant kicking in at all time of day making
concrete and trucks trundling up and down Forest Road picking up the concrete. Can I
ask when we are likely to see the end of this concrete bashing plant and have it removed?
Answer:
It is quite a detailed question so I will give you a written answer.
46.

MOTIONS

46.1 Motion 398 submitted by Lindsay Ferris
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by Lindsay Ferris and
seconded by Prue Bray.
‘There are areas within the 21C project that do need to be introduced. However the
general view is that many aspects of the 21C project have yet to be proven.
The current morale of staff at Wokingham is extremely low. In addition not only have staff
been made redundant, (under Phase 1), but a significant number of staff have just left due
to the uncertainty caused by such a dramatic change. In addition many Members are still
unclear as to what is the correct way to proceed and how it impacts their relationship with
the Council and the wider Public.
The Council is about to recruit a new Chief Executive with an expected timescale of early
2018 before any chosen candidate is likely to be in post. Any new Chief Executive would
want to review the 21C project on his/her appointment. It is therefore proposed that Phase
2 of the 21C programme be delayed until after the appointment of the new Chief
Executive. This would give time to review how Phase 1 has progressed and to resolve any
issues arising.’
Following debate, upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to
be lost.
46.2 Motion 399 submitted by Charlotte Haitham Taylor
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by David Lee on behalf of
Charlotte Haitham Taylor in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.13.10, and seconded by
Simon Weeks.
‘This Council reaffirms its commitment to condemn all forms of discrimination designed to
exclude individuals or groups from social and public life. This Council will further agree to
review its existing practices to ensure that discrimination does not occur within our
Borough, except where there is a legal or moral requirement to focus on or exclude a
particular group or groups.’
Following debate, upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to

45

be carried.
RESOLVED: That this Council reaffirms its commitment to condemn all forms of
discrimination designed to exclude individuals or groups from social and public life. This
Council will further agree to review its existing practices to ensure that discrimination does
not occur within our Borough, except where there is a legal or moral requirement to focus
on or exclude a particular group or groups.

46

Agenda Item 52.
TITLE

Property Portfolio Investment Strategy

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Council on 23 November 2017

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Director Corporate Services

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
The revenue received from the creation of a Property Investment Portfolio will soften the
impact of reducing Central Government funding by creating new income streams that
will be free from austerity measures and will improve the financial resources available to
the Council.
RECOMMENDATION
Council is recommended to:
1)

note the recommendations agreed by Executive on 28 September 2017, as set
out in the report;

2)

agree that up to £100m borrowing powers, in line with the Property Portfolio
Investment Strategy, are delegated to the Director Corporate Services, in
consultation with the Leader, Executive Member for Finance and the Executive
Member for Business, Economic Development and Regeneration;

3)

agree that in line with the Property Portfolio Investment Strategy the Director
Corporate Services, in consultation with the Leader, Executive Member for
Finance and the Executive Member for Business, Economic Development and
Regeneration, be delegated authority to invest up to a maximum of £20m for a
single transaction.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
This report considered two types of investment namely:
1. Developments on Council-owned land.
2. The purchase of and or development of income-generating or re-saleable property
assets.
The report described proposals for implementing an investment strategy to preserve and
improve the financial resources available to the Council by generating revenue income
from capital investment as a direct response to the proposed reduction in Central
Government funding in future years.
To fund investment opportunities, the Council will utilise Public Works Loan Board
borrowing of up to £100m or the proceeds of asset disposals.
Following Executive agreement to the broad principles, it is necessary for Council to
agree borrowing of up to £100m.

47

Background
The Council has already embarked on an assets investment programme through Town
Centre Regeneration and the Council owned housing companies. These investments
are approved by Executive on a case by case basis.
All other investments are made in accordance with the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy. These are shorter term and of low risk and are currently yielding a modest
0.4% net return, even where specialist fund managers are engaged.
In contrast, yields from property present an opportunity for greater returns, even allowing
for the inherent risk and illiquidity in direct property ownership. There is therefore an
opportunity for the Council to increase its risk profile by investing in income generating
assets where typically the gross yield range from property investment could be 3-12%,
with lower yields reflecting a more secure investment requiring less management. NB Yield is the relationship between value and income.
The minimum investment criteria will be above the costs of borrowing from the Public
Works Loan Board (currently circa 3%).
The net yield achieved will provide a direct profit to the Council and will be available to
subsidise the costs of core services and mitigate the annual impact of Government
funding cuts.
As Central Government funding has fallen, this has led to ever widening funding gaps,
pressure on spending and reductions in services and staff. This has resulted in Local
Authorities looking at innovative ways to generate alternative revenue streams that
deliver more than the limited returns that are currently available from bank reserves.
At the same time, suggestions from Central Government that Councils should aim to be
more self-sufficient in their income sources, has made it increasingly commonplace for
Councils to invest in commercial property where the higher yields help to offset the
impact of the grants cuts.
Compared to many local authorities, Wokingham has a small property portfolio, although
the Town Centre Regeneration scheme has/will increase numbers significantly.
Until 4-5 years ago, there was only a small number of authorities expanding their
investment property portfolios, but since then that number has increased dramatically.
Indeed, Savills estimate that last year, local authorities spent £1.2bn across a range of
commercial property and collectively the biggest investors in the last 18 months have
been Councils.
The moves towards property investment portfolios is a logical step if it is undertaken
sensibly and is not seen as the panacea for all the Council’s funding problems.
Recently there has been comment in the media regarding the risks that many local
authorities have taken by entering the commercial property investment market with
suggestions that they are gambling with public funds, even though Councils have been
involved in commercial property for many years. This has led to suggestions that central
government may look to stop local authorities from using the PWLB funding for
investment purposes.

48

However, if the Council is to be innovative and develop a portfolio, then a robust riskassessed approach is needed to protect the Council’s interests.
In this regard, an Investment Protocol has been developed so that a case by case
review of each proposed investment can be conducted using an evaluation methodology
that must then go through the appropriate approval process described, before any
commitment to an acquisition is made.
Analysis of Issues
It is proposed that there are two types of investment – development on our own land
and/or other development and property-related opportunities.
The approvals for development on our own land will be in accordance with the current
approvals process i.e. through Executive. It is proposed that governance for the
acquisition of other development opportunities will be in accordance with the criteria set
out in the Investment Protocol.
Any form of investment is not without risk since its value may rise or fall over time,
especially where it is retained over many years.
To mitigate the impact of uncertainty, the investment objective will be to accumulate a
spread of investments across many different opportunities including a variety of property
types, sizes, building condition, locations and covenant strength, with varying degrees of
risk.
At the Executive meeting on 28 September, the following recommendations were
agreed :
1) endorse the broad principles of the Property Portfolio Investment Strategy which
was set out in Part 2 of the report;
2) that delegated authority be given to the Director of Corporate Services, in
consultation with the Leader, Executive Member for Finance and the Executive
Member for Business, Economic Development and Regeneration, for purchases
totalling up to £100m;
3) recommend to Council that up to £100m borrowing powers are delegated to the
Director of Corporate Services, in consultation with the Leader, Executive
Member for Finance and the Executive Member for Business, Economic
Development and Regeneration;
4) note that the cost of borrowing will be funded by the investment income from the
commercial assets;
5) note that developments on Council owned land will be brought back individually
to Executive on a case by case basis.
There is a limit on Executive authority to incur expenditure up to £15m on individual
capital schemes, subject to such expenditure being within Council approved budgets,
and it is therefore necessary for Council to agree recommendation 3 above.

49

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it Cost/
(Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)

Financial implications are
dependent on cost of
purchases

Next Financial
Year (Year 2)

Financial implications are
dependent on cost of
purchases

Following Financial Financial implications are
Year (Year 3)
dependent on cost of
purchases

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
There is sufficient
revenue funding as
income generating
assets will pay for the
costs of borrowing.
There is sufficient
revenue funding as
income generating
assets will pay for the
costs of borrowing.
There is sufficient
revenue funding as
income generating
assets will pay for the
costs of borrowing.

Revenue or
Capital?
Capital spend
for revenue
income

Capital spend
for revenue
income

Capital spend
for revenue
income

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
See other financial implications
Cross-Council Implications
Revenue generated from the investments will assist in the continued provision of
Council services.
List of Background Papers
None
Contact Chris Gillett
Telephone No 07879 694105
Date 14 November 2017

Service Strategic Property and
Commercial Assets
Email chris.gillett@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 5

50

Agenda Item 53.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT
REMUNERATION PANEL APPOINTED TO
REVIEW THE ALLOWANCES PAID TO
COUNCILLORS OF WOKINGHAM BOROUGH
COUNCIL FOR 2017/18

FOR SUBMISSION TO THE COUNCIL ON
23 NOVEMBER 2017

51

Introduction
1. The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 provide
for the payment of Allowances to Members of the Council in connection with their
work as Councillors. Before the Council can make or amend a scheme of
allowances, it should consider the recommendations made in relation to it by an
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP).
2. The Council appointed its first Independent Remuneration Panel in 2003. In each
of the following Municipal Years, the Panel has made recommendations on the
levels of Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances for consideration by the
Council. An independent review of Members’ Allowances has been carried out in
2017. Details of the Panel’s remit are described in paragraph 4 below.
The Independent Remuneration Panel
3. The Members of the Independent Remuneration Panel are:
Tom Berman (Chairman) has been a resident of Wargrave for the past 40 years.
He is married with two grown-up children and has been involved with various local
voluntary groups over the years, of which Wargrave Surgery Patient Participation
Group, Wokingham Area PPG Forum and Hennerton Backwater Association are
the current main activities.
Nick Oxborough (Vice Chairman) has lived in Wokingham Borough since 1967.
He attended Primary and Comprehensive schools in Wokingham and then a local
college where he studied photography. He has worked in the Royal Berkshire Fire
and Rescue Service in an operational role for 34 years and now specialises as a
Fire Safety Inspector. During his career in the service he has had opportunity to
manage and be responsible for the delivery of the service to the community of
Wokingham Borough, as well as working with members of Royal Berkshire Fire
Authority. He is a Member of the Institute of Fire Engineers and has also achieved
other management and technical qualifications associated with his roles in the
Service.
David George has been living in Wokingham Borough since 1982, firstly in
Woodley and then since 1999 in Arborfield. He retired from Air Traffic Control in
December 2016 aged 55 after nearly 36 years’ service. In addition to his role in Air
Traffic Control he was a Union representative in the Prospect Union, which
represents ATC staff. He held the position of National Treasurer for the Controllers
section looking after a budget of approximately £70,000 for several years.
Arabella Yandle and Neil Carr, Democratic and Electoral Services Specialists, and
Anne Hunter, Democratic and Electoral Services Lead Specialist, provided
guidance and administrative support to the Panel.
Background and National Context
4. The Local Government (Local Authority Members in England) Regulations, which
came into force in 2003, stated that Independent Remuneration Panels established
by local authorities should make recommendations in respect of the following
issues:

52

Basic Allowance (BA) – each local authority must make provision for a basic, flat
rate payable to all Members.
Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) – each local authority may make
provision for the payment of Special Responsibility Allowances to those
Councillors who have significant additional responsibilities. The Panel has to
recommend the responsibilities that should be remunerated and the levels of each
allowance.
Childcare and Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance – local authorities may make
provision for the payment of an allowance to those Members who incur
expenditure for the care of children or dependant relatives whilst undertaking
particular duties.
Travel and Subsistence Allowance – local authorities may make provision for
the payment of a travelling and subsistence allowance to its Members for
undertaking a list of eligible duties as defined in the current scheme.
Co-optees’ Allowance – local authorities may make provision for the payment of
an allowance to co-optees for attending meetings, conferences and seminars.
5. The Regulations also provide for Panels to make recommendations in respect of
the following issues:




The cessation of payments to Members who have been suspended or
partially suspended from their duties, and the repayment of allowances;
The backdating of allowances to the beginning of the financial year in which
they are set, and provision to recommend annual adjustments by means of
an index; and
Whether some or all Members should be eligible to join the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

6. Non-Executive Director (NED) payments are made by Council-owned companies
to Members who act in non-Executive roles. They are similar to SRAs but have a
different legislative basis and are not included in the Council’s Members
Allowances Scheme. It is not within the remit of the Independent Remuneration
Panel to review the level of payments to NEDs on the Council-owned companies
unless a specific request for a review is made by one or more of the companies.
Terms of Reference for the 2017/18 Review
7. In 2017, the Panel agreed that, as a newly convened panel, it should carry out a
‘light touch’ review with the intention of leading on to a fuller review in 2018/19. A
survey on key questions was under-taken and Members were given the
opportunity to approach the Panel directly to voice their opinions.
8. In regard to the remuneration paid to Members appointed to serve as NonExecutive Directors of companies wholly owned by the Council, a number of
Members felt that this should be within the remit of the Panel. The level of
payments to Member Non-Executive Directors does not form part of the statutory
role of an Independent Remuneration Panel as set out in the Local Authorities
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. However, the Local

53

Authorities (Company Order) 1995 makes it clear that the Council has a duty
(under the Order) to ensure that its companies do not make payments ‘greater’
than that allowable under the Council’s rules.
9. The Independent Remuneration Panel noted that there appeared to be some
confusion over the linkage between SRAs and NED payments and the Panel’s role
in determining the latter. In order to clarify the position, the Panel received legal
advice on the payments in relation to the Panel’s Terms of Reference. The legal
advice confirmed that consideration of NED payments was outside the remit of the
Panel with the exception of specific requests received by the Panel from Councilowned companies to review the level of payments. Consequently, any
recommendation by the Panel relating to the number of SRAs payable to Members
specifically excludes NED payments.
Work Programme for the 2017 Review
10. The Panel met on the following occasions:









4 April 2017
24 April 2017
30 May 2017
27 June 2017
11 July 2017
2 August 2017
30 August 2017
23 October 2017

11. The Panel made reference to the following information to provide background,
context and assistance in reaching its conclusions:




Copies of the current Members’ Allowances Scheme agreed by the Council in
November 2016 and previous versions.
Copies of the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations
2003;
The summary of the South East Employers (SEEMP) Members’ Allowances
Survey 2015/16.

12. The Panel met 13 Members including the Leader of the Council, Members of the
Opposition, a number of present and former Deputy Executive Members and the
Chief Executive. The Panel sent out a survey to all Members, attached at
Appendix A to this report. 27 out of 54 surveys were returned. All comments were
treated confidentially. The Panel has had to assume that the responses thus
received represented a fair cross-section of Members’ opinions. Reference to the
information from the combined sources are referred to as ‘responding Members’ in
the report. Any percentages are calculated out of 27. Where information was
obtained from meetings, this is referred to as ‘Members who met the Panel…’.
13. Some Members made suggestions, which fell outside the scope of the current
Members Allowances Scheme legislation and the remit of the Panel. Therefore,
those suggestions have not been addressed in this report.

54

Remuneration
14. Many Members who met the Panel (8 of 13) said that they had originally
committed themselves to serve on the Council as volunteers and out of a sense of
civic duty; and a number commented that they had been surprised to find there
was any remuneration attached to the role.
15. Empirical evidence would suggest that, in any group of citizens banding together to
promote some community effort, a minority of volunteers choose to do the majority
of the work. The evidence presented to the Panel by interviewed Members
indicates that the same applies to Members in Council, and the Panel therefore
concluded that the more onerous roles, which attract SRAs payments, do not need
to provide very significantly increased remuneration.
16. In considering its proposals concerning Members’ remuneration, this Panel has
tested each recommendation against three core principles:
a) Is it affordable relative to Wokingham Borough Council budget constraints?
b) Is it reasonably similar to the practice in other unitary authorities in the region?
c) Would Borough residents consider it to be fair?
Basic Allowances
17. The Panel continued to use the premise that 50% of a Member's time is pro bono
as the role is that of a volunteer. This is based on the premise that the other 50%
was originally set at the Local Government Association's daily rate for the national
male median white-collar wage. Whilst an allowance is appropriate, it is not a
salary.
18. The Panel was of the opinion that the Basic Allowance should still comprise three
parts as standard. These are:




An allowance to recognise the responsibility and time involved in the role of a
Member.
Compensation for out of pocket incidental expenses related to their primary
role as a Member, not separately reimbursed under the scheme.
An allowance towards the cost of IT, communication and home office.

19. More than two thirds of responding Members (22 of 27) said that the current
allowances scheme fairly meets the expenses incurred.
20. During its review of allowances in 2016/17 the previous Panel recommended that
Members Basic Allowances be raised by the same percentage increase that
Officers received and suggested that this pattern should continue in the current
year. As Officer pay had been increased by 1% in the 2017/18 financial year the
current Panel recommends that there should be a 1% increase in the time
contributed element of the Member Basic Allowance. The Panel noted this would
represent an increase of £66 per Member taking the time contributed element of
the Basic Allowance from £6,618 to £6,684. This would be an increase in budget
from £357,372 to £360,936.
21. The Panel acknowledged representations made to it by some Members who met
the Panel (3 of 13) regarding car parking expenses at Shute End. The Panel
considered the impact of this at some length but concluded that car parking fees

55

were an out of pocket expense. As this amount had not been changed for some
time, the Panel recommends that the £500 for "out-of-pocket expenses" should be
increased to £600 per annum to contribute to increased costs. This would result in
a further increase of £5,400 on the budget figures set out in Paragraph 20.
22. The Panel continues to recommend that Members not providing proper home
office facilities, including those which allow constituents to communicate with them
by e-mail, should not be allowed to claim the £500 component of the Basic
Allowance. It recommends that the Council continues with a self-certification
process to reinforce this.
23. In conclusion, the Panel recommends that the Basic Allowance be increased to be
set at £7,784 per annum, backdated to 1 April 2017 and comprising the following
components:




£6,684 for time contributed; and
£600 for out of pocket expenses; and
£500 for IT, communication and home office.

Special Responsibility Allowances
24. The Panel acknowledged representations made to it by a number of Members who
met the Panel (10 of 13) regarding SRA payments and the relative amount of work
that each role involved and how it was performed. As the Panel was carrying out a
‘light touch’ review this year, any comments were recorded for inclusion in a
deeper review to be carried out in 2018/19, as part of which the intention would be
to examine the balance of work undertaken by Members.
25. During the Panel's review, a number of members (8 out of 13) expressed concerns
at the overturning of the recommendation of the previous Panel that SRAs/NED
payments be limited to one per member. In the May 2017 "Snapshot Survey", 19
out of 27 of the responding Members answered YES to the simple question: "In
your opinion, should the number of SRAs be restricted to one per person, being
the one with the highest value”. In the light of this, and after careful consideration
including the points set out in paragraphs 14 and 15 above, the recommendation of
the current Panel is that, with effect from 1 April 2018, the number of SRA
payments should be limited to one per Member, that being the one with the highest
value. The Panel felt that this recommendation was reasonable as it reflected the
views of two thirds of responding Members. It would also bring the Council into
line with the other Berkshire Unitaries and the majority of similar authorities in the
South East. Finally, it would provide an example of restraint at a time when many
of the Borough’s residents were facing difficult financial challenges. It thus
accords particularly with two of this IRP’s core principles: “Is it reasonably similar
to the practice in other unitary authorities in the region?” and “Would Borough
residents consider it to be fair?” As set out in paragraph 9, this restriction should
not apply to NED payments.
26. During the Panel’s review, some Members indicated that a payment cap would
provide an alternative method to limiting payments. The Panel is unaware of any
councils in the South East that currently use that model. Further work would need
to be done as part of the next review as to whether this would be permissible
under law.

56

27. On the issue of transparency surrounding the payments to Non-Executive
Directors and those received by Members from other organisations that they were
appointed to by Council. Motion 386 proposing the publication of details of
payments received by Members from other organisations had been passed at
Council on 26 September 2016, but the onus was on the Member to provide the
information. The Panel supports this decision and reiterates, in the light of
transparency, that Members be reminded to provide this information. We are
advised that it is entirely within the IRP’s purview to issue such a reminder.
28. The Panel also felt that the current information on Members' payments on the
Council website was not easy to access and was incomplete. The Panel
recommends that this be reviewed in the spirit of transparency to make the
information more prominent and immediately visible.
Travel and Subsistence Allowances
29. The level of Travel and Subsistence allowances was not raised as a significant
issue in the representations made to the Panel and, therefore, the Panel is not
recommending any changes to the current levels. The Panel made clear that
Members should feel able to claim for expenses they were entitled to.
Childcare and Dependants Carers Allowance
30. The Panel felt that the level of childcare, whilst set at the National Minimum/Living
Wage, did not reflect the cost of childcare in the local area and should be
increased to £10ph up to a maximum of 35 hours per month. Again, the Panel
wanted Members to feel confident about claiming for expenses they were entitled
to.

57

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2017/18
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL

The Panel recommends to the Council that:
(1)

The time contributed component of the Basic Allowance be increased by
1% to reflect the increase in Officer pay, backdated to 1 April 2017;

(2)

There be no change made to the multiples of the Special Responsibility
Allowances paid to those roles as set out in the current Members’
Allowances Scheme;

(3)

With effect from 1 April 2018, Special Responsibility Allowances should be
limited to one per Member (not including Non-Executive Director
payments) that being the one with the highest value;

(4)

In line with the motion passed by Council on 26 September 2016, Members
be reminded to provide information for publication on the website
regarding payments received from any outside bodies to which they were
appointed by Wokingham Borough Council;

(5)

The publication of Members' payments on the website be reviewed with a
view to make the information more prominent and immediately visible;

(6)

The £500 component of the Basic Allowance for out of pocket expenses
should be increased to £600, to contribute to the cost of parking at Shute
End;

(7)

The £500 component of the Basic Allowance for the provision of IT should
continue to be claimed only by those Members who provide facilities
which allow constituents and Officers to communicate with them by e-mail
and the self-certification process be continued;

(8)

The rate payable for the Childcare and Dependants Carers' Allowance be
increased to £10ph for up to 35 hours per month;

58

Appendix A

From Councillor:

MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SNAPSHOT SURVEY – MAY 2017
Dear Councillors
We have agreed on a light touch approach to the Independent Remuneration Review
this year. We are concentrating on the SRA aspect of the allowances and would
appreciate as near to a 100% response as is possible by 12 May. Your responses will
be kept strictly confidential.
1

Do you consider the time you spend on Council work to be:
a) excessive

b) about right

c) minimal

Please explain further:
2

Do you feel the current allowances scheme fairly meets the expenses you incur in
performing your duties and responsibilities as a councillor?
YES

NO

Please explain further.
3

In your opinion, should the number of SRAs be restricted to one per person, being
the one with the highest value?
YES

4

NO

I am employed/not employed/self-employed/retired – please delete as appropriate

Please return the completed questionnaire by 12 May 2017 to:
Arabella Yandle
Democratic Services Officer
Email: Arabella.yandle@wokingham.gov.uk

59

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 55.
TITLE

Changes to the Constitution

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Council on 23 November 2017

WARD

None Specific

LEAD OFFICER

Andrew Moulton, Assistant Director, Governance

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Reviewing the Council’s Constitution on a regular basis ensures that it is relevant and fit
for purpose.
RECOMMENDATION
That Council agree the following changes to the Constitution as recommended by the
Constitution Review Working Group:
1)

Chapter 4 The Council Meeting
that Rule 4.2.3.2 be amended as follows:
4.2.3.2 Business
“The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting of the Council shall
be a single item only unless exceptionally agreed by the Mayor.”

2)

Chapter 8 Regulatory and Other Committees
that Rule 8.4.2 be amended as follows:
8.4.2 Meetings of the Licensing and Appeals Committee
“The Licensing and Appeals Committee shall schedule a minimum of meet at
least four times meetings per Municipal Year, as scheduled in the Timetable of
Meetings, agreed by Council;”

3)

revisions to Rules 11.5.3, 11.5.4 and 11.6.5.3 (Officer Employment Procedure
Rules) and Chapter 11.6 (Delegated Powers Relating to Staffing Matters) as set
out in paragraph 4 of the report;

4)

revisions to the Financial Regulations as set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

5)

revisions to the Procurement and Contract Rules and Procedures as highlighted
in Appendix 2 to the report.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
Chapter 1.1.4 of the Council’s Constitution states that the Monitoring Officer will monitor
and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that its aims and principles are
given full effect.
The report contains revisions to a number of areas in the Constitution which were
agreed by the CRWG at their meeting on 30 October 2017.

61

Background
SECTION 4 – THE COUNCIL MEETING
1.
The CRWG considered proposals regarding extraordinary meetings of Full
Council. Members were of the view that extraordinary meetings of Full Council should
be to consider a single item of business only unless exceptionally agreed by the Mayor.
The following change is therefore proposed to Rule 4.2.3.2:
“The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting of the Council shall
be a single item only unless exceptionally agreed by the Mayor.”
SECTION 8 – REGULATORY AND OTHER COMMITTEES
2.
The CRWG considered a request to amend the terms of reference of the
Licensing and Appeals Committee so that the Committee was not required to meet at
least four times a year. This change had been proposed because a number of
Licensing and Appeals Committee meetings have been cancelled due to a lack of
business, meaning that this requirement has not been met.
3.

The CRWG considered this request and felt that this would be appropriate.

The following change is therefore proposed to Rule 8.4.2:
8.4.2 Meetings of the Licensing and Appeals Committee
“The Licensing and Appeals Committee shall schedule a minimum of meet at
least four times meetings per Municipal Year, as scheduled in the Timetable of
Meetings, agreed by Council;”
SECTION 11 – OFFICERS
Chapter 11.5. – Officer Employment Procedure Rules and Chapter 11.6 Delegated
Powers Relating to Staffing Matters
4.
The CRWG considered a proposal to facilitate the appointments process for the
permanent appointment of the Head of Paid Service, S151 Officer, and the permanent
or interim appointment of the Monitoring Officer and also the permanent appointment of
Directors and the interim appointment of the Head of Paid Service and the S151 Officer.
This would also create consistency in the appointments process.
The following amendments, which have the agreement of Personnel Board members,
are therefore proposed to Rules 11.5.3, 11.5.4 and 11.6.5.3:
11.5.3 Permanent appointment of Head of Paid Service, S151 Officer, and
Permanent or Interim appointment of Monitoring Officer
a) Executive members will be informed of Personnel Board’s decision and given an
opportunity to object to the appointment then:
b) Personnel Board make the recommendation to approve the appointment to
Council

62

11.5.4 Appointment of Directors and the Interim appointment of the Head of
Paid Service and the S151 Officer
a)
b)

Executive Members will be informed of Personnel Board’s decision and
given an opportunity to object to the appointment then:
Subject to no objections the majority of Executive Members not
objecting, Personnel Board to make the appointment.

11.6.5.3 Appointment – Interim Chief Executive, Permanent Directors and
Monitoring Officer
Executive members will be informed of Personnel Board’s decision and given an
opportunity to object to the appointment.
Subject to no objections the majority of Executive members not objecting,
Personnel Board to make the appointment with the exception of the Monitoring
Officer where Personnel Board will make a recommendation to Council.
Process managed by the Lead Specialist, Human Resources.
SECTION 12 – FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
5.
The CRWG considered a number of proposed amendments to the Financial
Regulations. These are shown in bold italics in Appendix 1 to the report.
SECTION 13 - PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT RULES AND PROCEDURES
6.
The CRWG considered a number of proposed amendments to the Procurement
and Contract Rules and Procedures which are highlighted and set out in Appendix 2 to
the report.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent reductions
to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be
required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next three years and
all Executive decisions should be made in this context
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall

Revenue or
Capital?

£0
£0
£0

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

63

Cross-Council Implications
None
List of Background Papers
The Council’s Constitution
Contact Madeleine Shopland
Telephone No 0118 974 6319
Date 13 November 2017

Service Governance
Email
madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 1

64

Appendix 1
Finance Regulations – Proposed Changes
Ref.
12.1.5.9

65
12.1.17.5

Text and Proposed Change
The Service Manager, Strategic
Assets may approve the disposal
or acquisition of land or buildings
which are worth less than
£150,000, in consultation with the
appropriate Director, together with
Director of Corporate Services
(Chief Finance Officer) and the
relevant Executive Member(s). The
disposal of surplus land or buildings
of a higher value shall also be
subject to the approval of the
Executive.

On approval by the Executive of a
programme of capital expenditure,
the Directors concerned may
request the Service Manager,
Strategic Assets to take steps to
enable land required for the
purposes of the programme to be
acquired in time. Subject to
approval by the Executive
Assistant Director Strategic
Property and Commercial
Assets, Assistant Director
Delivery and Infrastructure and
Director Corporate Services
(Chief Finance Officer) before any
acquisition is finalised.

Reason for Change
Due to the high level of development in the area, there is a need to take on land as part of the delivery of
some infrastructure projects, such as highways and public open space. In order to deliver these projects, the
Council will sometimes buy land and properties that are needed.
At present any proposed acquisition has to go to Executive for final approval. This is the previous approval
where the overall project to which the acquisition relates has already had Executive approval as part of the
Council’s capital programme process. This can cause delay to the timely acquisition of the land required,
and the delay can cause legal problems for the Council and increased costs.
The proposed change is to expedite the acquisition process by delegating sign off for land acquisition
schemes that have already been approved through the Council’s Capital Programme.
N.B. Discretionary land acquisitions are not covered under this section. Council policy on discretionary land
acquisition was adopted by Executive on 30 March 2017.

66

Ref.

Text and Proposed Change

Reason for Change

12.1.17.3

Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Developer Contributions
The utilisation (including the creation of new projects in the capital programme) of all CIL and
Section 106 Developer Contributions, and other funding from developers received under specific
legislation, up to £25,000 are to be agreed by the Resources Manager (CIL/S106) and the relevant
Head of Service. Between £25,000 and £100,000 to be agreed by the Head of Finance Director
Corporate Services (this authority has been delegated by the Head of Finance Director Corporate
Services to the Head of Assistant Director Development Delivery and Infrastructure and by the
Assistant Director Delivery and Infrastructure to the Lead Specialist Infrastructure Delivery &
Projects); the Service Manager responsible for the release of S106 money the Service Manager
Strategic Assets; and the Executive Member responsible for the area spending the CIL / S106
money. Above £100,000 will require approval from Executive quarterly as part of the capital
programme.

To make provision for spending CIL
funds within the finance regulations and
to align the approval process for CIL
with the approvals process for S106.
Officer titles have been updated in line
with the Council’s 21st Century
restructure.

12.1.8.2

Section 106 or Community Infrastructure Levy (excluding CIL payments to Town and Parish
Councils as prescribed under the CIL Regulations 2010) contributions to third parties, require the
submission of a bid from the third party, and approval via the protocol for CIL and Section 106
contributions outlined at paragraph 12.1.17.3. signed approval from Resources Manager (S106);
the Executive Member responsible for the release of S106 money; and the Executive Member
responsible for the area spending the S106 money.

To make the process consistent
between CIL or s106 spent directly and
CIL or s106 contributions to third
parties. This will simplify the process,
and ensure greater consistency. The
approvals process above, outlined in
12.1.17.3 will continue to be followed.

Appendix 2
a)
13.3.2 – Overview of Required Procurement Procedures
Second paragraph: addition of “…or the use of existing frameworks from other central
procurement bodies…”
13.3.2 Overview of Required Procurement Procedures
ALL procedures in the PCR2015 (including Schedule 3 Services) are subject to “the
principles of transparency and equal treatment of economic operators [tenderers]”.
Accordingly, there is no mechanism for negotiation with any individual tenderer, at
any stage of a procurement procedure. Procedures are available to allow for
negotiation, dialogue and innovation but they may only be used in specific
circumstances and involving all parties equally. These procedures are difficult to
manage effectively and should generally be avoided.
For procurements exceeding £50k, the default procedures are the Open or
Restricted procedures only or the use of existing frameworks from other central
procurement bodies; in order to use another procedure, officers need to consult with
Procurement and raise a waiver. For Services that need to manage urgent
requirements (e.g.: emergency placements), a blanket waiver (clearly specifying the
circumstances in which such a procedure is appropriate) may be available.
Check with your Service Manager to verify if any such waiver exists.
b)
Table 13.3.2.1 – Goods & Services and 13.3.2.2 – Schedule 3
Addition of a “recommended” standstill period for contract values from £50k – OJEU.
Addition of a new line requiring the completion of a Reg84 Report for contracts above
OJEU level.
13.3.2.1
The following table gives an overview of the Procurement and Contract
requirements for expenditure on Goods and Services (excluding Schedule 3
Services - see below) at various contract values:

Goods & Services
Contract Value
Fully compliant OJEU process
– any applicable process may
be utilised.
Open (single step) process
Request for Quotation (RFQ)
process, with credit check &
references
Simple quotation and selection
process

Below OJEU Threshold
£0k - £25k

£25k - £50k

£50k OJEU

Above
OJEU
> OJEU
Threshold




(min 3
quotes)
Min 3
Quotes

67

Approved business case for
the procurement at the
appropriate level
Legal & Procurement teams to
be notified before start of
procurement undertaking
Formal specification &
evaluation criteria
Simplified specification &
(if
evaluation
necessary)
All documents available on the
date of publication of notice or
advertisement
Publish in OJEU
Advertise in Contracts Finder
(within 24 hrs of 1st advert
anywhere else)
Pre-Qualification
prohibited
Questionnaire (PQQ)
Invitation to Tender (ITT)
Formal tender opening process
Formal tender evaluation
process
Award notified in OJEU
Award notified in Contracts
Finder
Signed contracts lodged with
SLS
Standstill period
Service Area to add contract
Contracts
data to central Contracts
> £5k
Register
Complete Reg84 Report




















if advertised
anywhere





prohibited

prohibited
























recommended











13.3.2.2
The following table gives an overview of the Procurement and Contract
requirements for expenditure on Schedule 3 services at various contract values.
These are for specific services such as health, social care, education, cultural and
certain other service contracts as defined by Common Procurement Vocabulary
(CPV) codes:
Schedule 3 Services
Contract Value

Below OJEU Threshold
< £50k

Light Touch Regime (“LTR”)
Any appropriate process may be
used

68

> £50k

Above OJEU
> OJEU
Threshold






Legal & Procurement teams to
be notified before start of
procurement undertaking
Formal specification & evaluation
criteria
Advertise in OJEU – contract
notice or PIN ALL documents
available at date of notice
Advertise in Contracts Finder
Pre-Qualification Questionnaire
(PQQ)
(Restricted Procedure)
Invitation to Tender (ITT)
Formal tender opening process
Formal tender evaluation
process
Publish contract award notices
(can publish notices grouped
quarterly)
Standstill period
Service Area to add contract
data to central Contracts
Register
Complete Reg84 Report

Min 3
Quotes











> £25k, if advertised anywhere
Optional
(but prohibited below
prohibited
the Goods & Services
OJEU Threshold)
















recommended









If > £25k

Contracts
> £5k



For ALL procurements, any appropriate process may be used and there is flexibility
in the types of award criteria that can be defined but any procedure used must
ensure equal treatment of tenderers and transparency. There are no prescribed
timescales for procedures but they must be “reasonable and proportionate”.
The procedure can deviate from the LTR as long as there is no breach of equal
treatment & transparency and the reasons are documented & communicated.
c)
Table 13.3.2.3 – Works
Addition of new lines covering the standstill period and the Reg84 Report.
13.3.2.3
The following table gives an overview of the Procurement and Contract
requirements for expenditure on Works at various contract values:
Works
Contract Value

Below OJEU Threshold
£0 - £50k
£50k - OJEU

Full OJEU process
Invitation to Tender (ITT)
Optional Construction Line
“Tender”



69

Above OJEU
> OJEU
Threshold


 (if not Construction
Line)



 (if no ITT)

n/a

Approved business case for the
procurement at the appropriate
level
Legal & Procurement teams to
be notified before start of
procurement undertaking
Formal specification & evaluation
criteria
Simplified specification &
evaluation
Publish in OJEU. ALL
documents to be available prior
to issue of the OJEU notice
Advertise in Contracts Finder
Pre-Qualification Questionnaire
(PQQ)
(Restricted Procedure)
Formal tender evaluation
process
Request for Quotation (RFQ),
credit check and references for
selected supplier
Award notified in OJEU
Award notified in Contracts
Finder
Signed contracts lodged with
SLS
Standstill period
Service Area to add contract
data to central Contracts
Register
Complete Reg84 Report















if advertised anywhere
Optional
(but prohibited below
prohibited
the Goods & Services
OJEU Threshold)







(min 3
quotes)

If > £25k

Contracts
> £5k









recommended








d)
Table 13.3.3.1 – Overview of Contract Terms and Conditions
Increase in the Contract Value threshold from £50k to £100k.
13.3.3.1 Overview of Contract Terms and Conditions
Having selected an appropriate supplier, the following sources of T&Cs may be
appropriate for various contract values. These represent the minimum
requirements for any given contract value; for low value contracts, more stringent
T&Cs (e.g. simplified Contract Terms instead of a standard PO) may be relevant in
some circumstances:

70

Contract
Value
<50k

>£50k
<100k
>£100k

Duration

Risk

Procurement
Cards

Standard
Purchase
Order
Terms

<12mth
>12mth

any
Any


n/a




Any

Any

n/a



any

Any

n/a

n/a

Template
Contract

Formal
Contract
Terms (via
SLS)




Suppliers’
Terms
By exception
and only with
input of
Shared Legal
Solutions

NOTE: Services may have Procurement Cards, which can be utilised for low value,
low risk, one-off transactions, subject to the individual spending limit on the card.
All ongoing / recurring requirements should be procured under a PO.
If you have any questions or concerns around contracts that may be high risk,
consult SLS and/or Procurement. For example: relatively low value contracts may
have risks around sensitive data associated with them, which make the inclusion of
a Confidentiality Agreement appropriate in that particular case.

71

This page is intentionally left blank

